
ANNUAL REPORT to the Community 
for the year ended March 31,1999 

The 1998199Annual Report to the Community 
highlights the activities add the accomplishments 
of the North-East Health District, and describes 
the financial status of the District for the year 
ended March 31, 1999. 
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Board Cbairperzon and CfO Report 

June 28, 1999 

The l998199 fiscal year was a year of many accomplishments and some 
turmoil. Our budget allowed us to maintain the status quo, with planned 
changes for the community of Carrot River. 

One of the major accomplishments of the year was the district-wide 
accreditation held in November 1998. All facilities in the health district, 
with the exception of Cumberland House, were visited by members of the 
survey team. The health district's quality insurance teams were 
interviewed, as well as were general staff, families and clients. The 
accreditation preparation process was very good education for all staff as 
the majority of facilities within the health district had not previously been 
surveyed. The report was received at the end of February and the district 
received a three year accreditation status. Hats off to all the staff for all 
the efforts in preparation for this, our initial district-wide survey! 

The Pine Haven 10 bed Dementia Unit was completed within Pineview 
Lodge and open for residents on September 1. This unit has been 
extremely well received by residents and families as well, and provides a 
much needed new dimension to care in our long-term service. A great 
deal of work went into this by staff, board members and our consultant 
Terry Benson from Melfort. 

The physician community was quite stable during the past fiscal year, 
which was a real plus for the entire district. In the summer of 1998 we 
were faced with the possibility of losing both of our general surgeons, 
however, we were able to retain their services throughout the fiscal year. 
Our search continues for one general surgeon as we expect Dr. Shamsud 
Duha to retire in 1999. 

The North-East Health District continues to be a district of choice for 
many students. At times we have been almost overwhelmed with the 
requests to do rotations within our health district. 

On May 4, 1998, the District Health Board announced to the community 
of Carrot River their decision to consolidate health services under one roof 
in that community. Since that time, numerous meetings have been held 
with the Carrot River Health Planning Committee and a further decision 
was made to consolidate to the Pasquia Special Care Home. A Project 
Brief was submitted to the Department of Health in February 1999 and we 
are still awaiting their decision. 

Anothefmajor event in 
l998199 was the transfer of 
Cumberland House from 
Northern Health Services, 
effective April 1, 1998. The 
Cumberland House Nursing 
Station has been in place 
since 1929. This transfer of 
services includes the 
Cumberland House Health 
Centre and Dental Services. 
Funding was transferred for 
addictions and home care 
services. 

We welcome the staff of the 
Cumberland House Health 
Centre to the North-East 
Health District and look 
forward to working more 
closely with the community 
in the future. 

The Board undertook a major 
strategic planning process 
this year in order to meet the 
Department of Health 
requirements for a three year 
strategic plan. This process 
included not only the Board, 
but the majority of the CQI 
(continuous quality 
improvement) teams also 
participated in the process. 
Now that the three year 
Strategic Plan has been 
submitted, we will be 
required to submit annual 
updates of a much shorter 
version to the Department. 
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The North-East Health District was also pleased to support the expansion 
of the Dialysis Unit in the Tisdale Hospital to accommodate patients six 
days a week, rather than three. That service is up and running effective 
June 2 1, 1999. 

Once again we must acknowledge all of the volunteers in the health 
district, and the health auxiliaries for the contributions they have made to 
our facilities and services. We cannot commend enough these dedicated 
volunteers and we extend our sincere appreciation on behalf of our 
patients/residents/clients and all of our staff! 

The health foundations in Arborfield and Nipawin have provided 
significant input towards the purchase of capital equipment and also 
provided educational opportunities in the district. The Nipawin Region 
Health Foundation this year contributed an additional $250,000 towards 
the purchase of the fluoroscopy unit in the x-ray department at Nipawin 
Hospital. This addition of equipment will provide a very valuable service 
to the entire district, and we sincerely thank the Foundation for their 
generosity in this major donation. 
We remind individual donors that all donations are gratefully received and 

l may be specifically dedicated to any one facility or service within the 
health district. 

I The past year has been a challenge, but we have once again come through 
with all the dedicated and collaborative efforts of our staff and physicians. 
We sincerely thank everyone for their dedication and commitment to the 
service of health care in the North-East Health District, and we look 
forward to the challenges and opportunities which may arise in the 
upcoming year. 

Bruce Karras, Chair 
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Our Vision: 
Improving the Quality of Life 

Our Mission: 
Striving Together for 
Excellence In Health Care 
Delivery 

Our V u l ~ s :  
Cooperation and Teamwork 
Continuous Improvement 
Open Communication 
Honesty and Integrity 
Service Excellence 
Accountability 
Empowerment 
Equal Access 
Fairness 
Equality 

"Without question, the NEHD is 
the most impressive health district 
with which I have had the pleasure 
to work." 

- Glenn MacDonald, 
Canadian Health Networks 
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Authority d RezponsibiII'fy of the District Health Board 

Elected and appointed Board members have equal rights and authority, 
duties and responsibilities. 

The primary legal authority and responsibility of a district health board 
has been established by The Health District Act. 

The Act gives authority to the North-East District Health Board, 
among other things: 

To provide health services to the residents of the District 
To periodically assess the District resident's health needs 
To periodically evaluate the services provided 
To promote and encourage health and wellness 

Though the Board is legally responsible for everything that occurs in 
the District, it does not "manage" the corporation or deliver services. The 
Board delegates these duties to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and to 
the staff. 

The Board's business is governance: 
Setting strategic direction 
Selecting and evaluating the CEO 
Monitoring and evaluating results to ensure financial stability and 
quality of services 
Building community support 
Development an efficient and effective Board 

The CEO's business is making the organization work: 
Planning, organizing and assembling resources 
Directing and controlling these resources and providing leadership 
to ensure quality care 

Together the Board and CEO must try to balance what frequently are 
contradictory demands of health service delivery - access, quality and cost 
containment. 

Legislation 
The following statutes are the 
responsibility o f  the Minster o f  Health 
and have relevance to service provisio~ 
by the Nor$-East Health District. 

Most of  these statutes also have 
regulations which expand or clarify on 
the requirements and obligations 
prescribed by the respective act. 

The Ambulance Act 
The Chiropody Profession Act 
The Health Districts Act 
The Home Care Act 
The Hospital Revenue Act 
The Hospital Standards Act 
The Housing and Special Care Homes 
Act 
The Licensed Practical Nurse Act 
The Medical Radiation Technologists 
Act 
The Mental Health Services Act (and 
the Mentally Disordered Persons Act 
administered by Saskatchewan Justice) 
The Mutual Medical and Hospital 
Benefit Associations Act 
The Physical Therapists Act, 1984 
The Professional Dietitians Act 
The Public Health Act, 1994 
The Registered Nurses Act, l988 
The Registered Occupational 
Therapists Act 
The Registered Psychiatric Nurses Act 
The Registered Psychologists Act 
The Residential Services Act 
The Saskatchewan Hospitalization Act 
The Speech-Language Pathologists 
and Audiologists Act 
The Vital Statistics Act 

I North-East District I 
7--- 4 Health Board - p,-'- District Medical Staff 

Emergency Chief Executive Officer 
Rayann Ulvick Tammy Murphy 

Director of Finance l I Director of 
Lynn Verklan Community Services 

Kim Sanderson Clarence Hendr~ckson 

Director of Director of 
Planning & Research Health Serv~ces 

Nipawin Community District Department 
Coordinator Consultants 
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District Health Board Member Profiles 

Margaret Anderson, Vice-Chair, Ward 5 - appointed. 
Currently works as a homemaker and farmer in the Aylsham area. Married with two 
children and two grandchildren. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Joint Conference, Education, 
Leadership Team, Dementia Unit Planning. 
Community group participation includes: Board of Stewards, Envelope Recording 
Treasurer, U.C.W., President of the Aylsham Drop-In Activity Centre. 
Hobbies include: going to the cabin, fishing, reading, gardening. 

l Diane Berge, Ward 4 - elected. 
Human ~ c o l o ~ i s t ~ ~ o m e  Economist and Teacher. Married with two children and four 
grandchildren. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Joint Conference, Nipawin Region 
Health Foundation. 
Community group participation includes: Nipawin School Division Board member. 
Hobbies include: folk art painting, collecting dolls, gardening, quilting, reading. 

Janet Caouette, Ward 6 - elected. 
Owner of Jascal Bookkeeping and farms east of Carrot River. Married with two 
children. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Finance, Ad Hoc as required. 
Community group participation includes: Board of Trade, Community Promotions. 
Hobbies include: curling, reading. 

Robert Cheechoo, Ward 7 - elected. 
Director of Operations for the North Cote Metis Development Corporation in 
Cumberland House. Married with two children. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Finance. 
Community group participation includes: Interagency Committee. 
Hobbies include: hockey, fastball, hunting. 

Minnie Deutsch, Ward 2 - appointed. 
Retired Registered Nurse. Retired CO-ownerlmanager of a retail business. Married with 
four children and six grandchildren. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Finance, Leadership Team, Nipawin 
Region Health Foundation. 
community group participation includes: Volunteer with Health District, Junior Hockey 

I Team, K-Ettes, Church Choir. 
Hobbies include: reading, knitting, golf. 

Margaret Hughes, Ward 2 - elected. 
Currently works as a Registered Nurse at Nipawin Hospital. Married with four children 
and four grandchildren. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Joint Conference. 
Community group participation includes: Ladies Auxiliary to the Royal Canadian 
Legion, member of United Church. 
Hobbies include: reading, sewing, fishing, gardening. 

Didyou know? 
District Health Board elections 

will be held in the fall of 1999. 

Who will I elect? 
The NEHD is divided 

geographically into eight wards. 
One person will be elected in each 
ward. You vote in the ward in 
which you live. 

How often will elections be held? 
Board members will be elected 

in four wards every two years. For 
example, Wards l ,  3 ,5  & 7 will 
elect members for a four-year term 
in 1999 and Wards 2 ,4 ,6  & 8 will 
elect members for a four year term 
in 200 1. 

Who can vote? 
A person who is at least 18 

years of age, is a Canadian citizen, 
is a resident of the health district on 
election day and has resided in 
Saskatchewan for six months prior 
to election day. 

Will members be appointed to the 
Board? 

After the election, the Minister 
of Health may appoint four 
additional members to each health 
board. 

Can defeated candidates be 
appointed to the Board? 

Defeated candidates are not 
eligible for appointment. 
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Bruce Karras, Chairperson, Ward 3 - elected. 
Previously worked in the potash industry. Married with two children. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Finance, Joint Conference, Leadership 
Team, Nipawin Region Health Foundation. 
Hobbies include: camping, canoeing, badminton, soccer, bridge. 

Ann Lindsay, Ward 8 - elected. 
Retired CEO of Arborfield Union Hospital. Currently farms in the Arborfield area. 
Married with four children and nine grandchildren. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Joint Conference. 
Community group participation includes: United Church- Secretary Treasurer. 
Hobbies include: quilting, knitting. 

Leonard Nakonechny, Ward 1 - appointed. 
Farms in the Foxford-Shipman area. Married with six children and two grandchildren. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Finance. 
Community group participation includes: North Sask Laundry Board, Credit Union 
Director, Rural Life Ministry. 
Hobbies include: reading. 

John Pelech, Ward 1 - elected. 
Registered Psychiatric Nurse. Married with two children. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Joint Conference. 
Community group participation includes: P.A.R.T. (Professional assault response 
training) instructor, member of Choiceland Town Council. 
Hobbies include: camping, boating, fishing, skiing, curling, dancing and cards. 

Doug Phillips, Ward 4 - appointed. 
Public health dentistry. Married with five children and eight grandchildren. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Education Committee. 
Community group participation includes: United Church of Canada, Nature 
Saskatchewan. 
Hobbies include: birdwatching, canoeing, hiking, reading, gardening. 

Eleanor Rourke, Ward 5 - elected. 
Retired Education Administrator in Regina and Saskatoon. Currently farms in the 
Aylsham area. Married with three children and five grandchildren. 
Health District Committee participation includes: Finance, Ad Hoc as required. 
Community group participation includes: CESO Aboriginal Services Advisor, Aylsham 
United Church activities. 
Hobbies include: gardening, traveling, bridge. 

The District includes the 
communities of: 

Arborfield 
Armley 
Aylsham 
Carlea 
Carrot River 
Choiceland 
Codette 
Cumberland House 
Foxford 
Garrick 
Love 
Moose Range 
Nipawin 
Pontrilas 
Shipman 
Smeaton 
Snowden 
Tobin Lake 
White Fox 
Zenon Park 

The District also encompasses the 
Red Earth, Shoal Lake of the Cree 
Nation and the Cumberland House 
Bands. 
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The North-East Health District is located in the most beautiful part of the 
province of Saskatchewan. We are extremely fortunate to have both 
farmland and parkland within the boundaries of our district. We 
encompass some of Saskatchewan's richest soils and remain primarily an 
agricultural centre. Our farms produce abundant wheat, canola, barley, 
flax and oats, as well as limited acreages of specialty crops. Livestock 
producers raise beef, hogs, ostrich, and there are a few dairy farms as well. 
This area has led in farm diversification and includes many less traditional 
farming and ranching ventures, including honey farms, buffalo ranches, 
elk game farms, and fish farms. Local nurseries sell to customers 
throughout Canada. 

A sawmill, canola crushing plant, dehy plants, and a peat moss plant form 
major industry other than farming within the health district. 

The parkland we encompass is highlighted by two lakes - Tobin and 

! Codette, and numerous small lakes on the Hanson Lake Road. This is a 
very high tourist area with unlimited excitement for vacationers and thrills 
for sportsmen. This is an area with friendly neighbourhoods, plentiful 
activities, many services and recreational facilities for all ages. 

DISTRICT FORMATION 
The North-East Health District was formed under the Health District Act 
by Order in Council on September 8, 1993. The District extends from 
Foxford on the West to the Manitoba border on the East. It originally 
followed the tree line and the Saskatchewan River in the north but in 1997 
was extended to include an area to the north in wards 2, 6 and 7. This 
encompasses a portion of the Hanson Lake Road and an area north of 30 

the Saskatchewan River and Tobin Lake now bordering on the newly % 25 
+. 

formed health district of Mamawetan Churchill River. It extends south 2 
g 2 0  

to Zenon Park and Highway 335. The District also includes the First Q 

Nations Reserves of Red Earth, Shoal Lake and Cumberland House as 8 1 5  

well as the Village of Cumberland House. The District covers 13,105.7 ilo 
square kilometres with a population of approximately 16,000. 5 

3 S 

DISTRICT AGENCIES o 

Within the District there are: acute care facilities at Carrot River and 
Nipawin; health centres at Arborfield, Cumberland House, Smeaton and 
Zenon Park; long term care facilities at Arborfield, Carrot River and 
Nipawin; one home care service with an office located in Nipawin which 
covers the entire District; and one ambulance service with staffed 
ambulance units in Carrot River and Nipawin, which also covers the entire 
District. All organizations were amalgamated as of April l ,  1994. 

Didyou know? 

30% of the NEHD is under the 
age of 19 

17% of the NEHD is over the 
age of 65 

53% of the NEHD is between 
the ages of 20 - 64 

North-East Health District 
Age Distribution 1998 

0 - 14 15 - 24 25 - 38 40 - 84 85 - 7 4  75 - 84 
AGE GROUPINGS 

NEHD SASKATCHEWAN 
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DISTRICT SERVICES 

Emergency services. primary care, preventive teaching and community 
wellness activities are conducted out of the Health Centres. Primary acute 
care is provided at Carrot River Hospital and primary acute care and some 
non-primary acute care is also provided out of the Nipawin Hospital. 
Obstetrics and surgery are also available within the District and a wide 
variety of professional staff are available including a dietitian, 
physiotherapist, occupational therapist, pharmacist, on-staff radiologist 
and a general surgeon. Visiting consultants and allied health services hold 
clinics within the District and some on-site surgery is provided by visiting 
specialists. 

The long term care facilities within the District offer a wide variety of 
programs including levels three and four care, day care, night care and 
respite care. There are excellent activity programs offered at all three 
long-term care facilities. 

The new special unit, Pine Haven, located in Pineview Lodge is a very 
comfortable 10 bedroom home for residents with dementia. Residents 
moved into this unit September 30th and already we are receiving very 
positive reports - an example being a gentleman who had to be fed when a 
resident in Pineview and who began to feed himself almost immediately 
after his transfer to Pine Haven. The atmosphere is quite remarkable. 

Home based services continue to expand as we move to de- 
institutionalization and more acute primary care provided in the home. 
Home nursing services, homemaking services, meals-on-wheels, 24 hour 
access, single point of entry, including strengthened case management and 
central assessment and placement, and palliative care are just a few of the 
home based programs provided. 

The District contracts ambulance services which includes ambulances 
stationed at Carrot River and Nipawin. First responder training, 
community CPR and first aid training are also provided by North-East 
EMS. 

Community Health Services are provided from central offices located in 
Nipawin and include mental health, public health nursing and inspection, 
addiction counselling, dental health education, community 
therapy, speech language pathologist, early childhood intervention and 
nutritional services. These services were transferred to the health district 
on April l ,  1995. 

On April l ,  1998 the Government 
of Saskatchewan, Northern Health 
Services Branch, transferred the 
responsibility for the provision of 
health services in the northern 
community of Cumberland House 
to the North-East Health District. 
The transferred services include the 
Cumberland House Health Centre, 
Dental Therapy, Home Care, 
Addictions Services and 
Community Health Education. 

Did you know? 

19 visiting medical specialists 
provided over 4,000 out-patient 
visits and patient surgeries last 
year. 
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Three Year Accredifufion Sfufus for fbe North-Eusf ffeulfb 
Disf ricf 

The North-East Health District received its first District wide 
Accreditation award by Canadian Council on Health Services 
Accreditation(CCHSA) following a week long survey in November of 
1998. The District was awarded the maximum three year certificate of 
accreditation. 

During their onsite visit in November of 1998, a team of CCHSA 
surveyors met with the NEHD Board of Directors, senior administration, 
care teams and support teams (human resources, environment, information 
management, etc.) to review documentation, policies, procedures, care 
plans, health records and standards compliance and to visit key work areas 
(nursing units, special care homes, home care, public health, mental health 
and community health centers). The surveyors also met with patients/ 
residents and their families who were interviewed about the quality of 
care received and their understanding of their role in the care and 
treatment process. 

The Accreditation Survey served as a mechanism by which the NEHD was 
not only able to assess its own performance on an ongoing basis against a 
set of nationally developed standards but to have its performance validated 
by external reviewers who identified areas of excellence within the 
district's organization as well as areas for improvement. 

Commendations from the Accreditation Survey Report: 

recognition of the district's efforts in preparing for a full health 
systems accreditation survey which involved many services and sites. 
good strategic alliances between two neighbouring health districts and 
with First Nations which are aiding service integration and 
development of joint projects 
the establishment of partnerships with groups outside the immediate 
sphere of health such as education, justice, social services and housing. 
the development of a district wide community needs assessment 
framework that will allow the ongoing review of services across the 
continuum of care 
staff input into program development and planning processes through 
the management advisory process(MAP) 
positive feedback from clients and families who use the health services 
about the staff and quality of care 
the establishment of a district service directory 

Commitment to Excellence! 

The North-East Health District 
received a three (3) year Certificate 
of Accreditation in 1999. 

Did you know? 

Accreditation is one of the most 
effective measures that a health 
care organization can use to assess 
its level of performance. It is a peer 
review and self assessment process 
that focuses on ways to 
continuously improve the health 
care system. 
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the establishment of a quality plan and team training on the principles 
of quality improvement 
innovative responses to community needs such as the creation of a 
community health nurse at the Zenon Park Health Centre to facilitate 
access. 
the development of supportive living units and a transition suite at 
Jubilee Place in collaboration with the Municipal Housing Authority 
the district's efforts to incorporate health promotion and illness 
prevention into all services 
the development of a district wide infection control manual 
the district's efforts to consult with staff and the community in 
preparation for strategic planning and for establishing the mission, 
vision and values 
the governing body and management staff for their leadership and 
support of quality improvement. 

Key Priorities for Future : 
Implementation of the recommendations from the Canadian Council 
on Health Services Accreditation 
Progress reports to CCHSA on continuous quality improvement 
activities. 

The Board of Directors, Senior Management, Staff and Q1 (quality 
improvement) Teams have focused their efforts on the following key client 
/consumer issues : 
a Access to quality health services 

Aging population needs 
Aboriginal population needs 
Reorientation of health services from institutional to community- 
based model 
Maintenance of privacy and confidentiality 
Effective use and development of information technology 

The North-East Health District is addressing these issues by providing a 
population health approach to the planning and managing of health 
services: - 

Adopting and using the determinants of health factors that influence 
health far beyond health services such as income, education, 
employment, etc. 
Integrating services into an integrated and seamless system of settings, 
services, service providers and service levels 
Promoting health and wellness 

a Encouraging community involvement and partnerships 
Relying on evidence based decision making 

Did you know ? 

Accreditation has played a major 
role in the monitoring of health 
care organizations for nearly forty 
years. 

Approximately 1,350 health care 
organizations across Canada 
voluntarily participate in the 
CCHSA Accreditation Program. 

"I would like to thank the doctors 
and staff of your hospital who gave 
me emergency treatment. They 
gave me immediate attention and 
everything was done just right!" 

-John, 
Saskatoon 
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Accomplishments for 1998-1999: 
A three year accreditation status which provided evidence of 
accountability and assurance to the community 
Revision of the Board's ends policies and development of a three year 
strategic plan 
Development of a strategic plan for Quality Improvement (QI) 
Implementation of a computerized admission, discharge and transfer 
system 
Increased awareness as to role of the district's Quality of Care 
Coordinator 
Integration and coordination of home care, public health and mental 
health services through a Community Services Coordinator 
Utilization studies of acute care services for Nipawin and Carrot River 
Hospitals 
Implementation of MDS -RUGS (new Long Term Care classification 
tool to replace the current Level 1- 4 system ) 
The development of planning strategies for Cumberland House Health 
services following transfer April 1, 1998 from the Department of 
Northern Services 
Evaluation of the effectiveness and continuation of the following 
programs: Quick Response ,Children's Development Group, 
Daymight Programming, Adult Immunization, Youth Counselor 
Community Health Assessment in Arborfield 
A Youth Counsellor Program in partnership with the Nipawin and 
Tisdale School Divisions 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
Continued emphasis on integration and coordination of programs and 
services 
Continuing staff development and education on Team Building 
(particulary in the areas of problem solving skills, conflict resolution 
skills and team management practices) 
Continued development of performance indicators, monitoring of 
outcomes and evaluation of programs and services. 
The development and implementation of a formal integrated risk 
management program 
The development and implementation of a formal performance 
appraisal process 
The development and implementation of an information management 
and human resources plan 
Community Needs Assessment in Cumberland House, Smeaton, 
Zenon Park 
Renovations to Pasquia Special Care Home to address physical 
environment and resident safety issues as noted in the accreditation 
report. 

"Thank you for the excellent care 
you have given my Mom. You 
have gone the extra mile, to put a 
smile on her face when she was so 
frustrated in handling her 
disabilities. You were so kind and 
caring. You have given me 
emotional support through this 
difficult adjustment phase. Words 
aren't enough to express the 
gratitude and appreciation I feel." 

- L &  
NEHI 

Your district's Quality of Care 
Coordinator is available to help 
residents who have questions or 
concerns about health services and 
to ensure residents know their 
rights and options. Based on 
clients' comments, the coordinator 
may also recommend changes to 
enhance the quality of health 
services in your district. 

Quality of Care Coordinator -
Sharon de Santis, 862-6103 
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Takin y Hold of Our Future 

During the winter of 1998, the District Board and Staff worked to develop 
the three-year strategic plan for the North-East Health District. The 
purpose of this planning document is to build upon the organization's 
mission, vision and values. The planning process defines who the client 
is, what their needs are, and how effectively those needs are being 
addressed. The processes utilized by the North-East District Health Board 
to develop its strategic plan included: 

an environmental analysis 
the identification of issues 
the development and prioritizing strategic goals and objectives 
the development of the means to implement the objectives 
the establishment of a communication strategy to share this plan with 
the community and stakeholders 
the development and implementation of an outcome measurement 
system to evaluate the performance of the NEHD in relation to its 
strategic direction 

Strategic Directions 
In January 1999, the Board held a Strategic Planning Session to refine 14 
broad-based Desired End Statements or goals within the planning 
framework. These goals set out what the Board wants to achieve. They 
firther define the district's mission and are seen as also guiding staff in 
their day-to-day activities. The following fourteen Ends Statements form 
the organizational goals for the next three years: 
1. Residents shall make informed choices regarding a healthy lifestyle. 
2. District residents will have access to early detection and treatment programs and 

services. 
3 .  Support programs and services will be available to clients and their families to 

develop self-management skills. 
4. The incidence of communicable disease will decrease. 
5 .  Healthy workplaces and home environments will be created through community 

partnerships and advocacy. 
6 .  Through community partnerships, district children and youth will have opportunity 

for safe and healthy growth and development. 
7. Emergency services will be provided in a timely and effective manner subject to 

geographic limitations. 
8.  Residents will have access to quality, client-centered, integrated services at a cost 

affordable to the district. 
9. Residents will have access to a full range of health services through their first point 

of contact with the district. 
10. Clients and their families will be confident that respite services will be available in 

the community when required. 
11. Residents with terminal illnesses may have access to palliative care in the 

appropriate place of their choice, based upon assessed need and available resources. 
12. Residents will have access within the district to outpatient mental health services. 
13. Decisions regarding services and programs in the district will be need-based and 

evidence-based. 
14. The district's health system will be sustainable. 

Did yo know? 

The NEHD offers over 144 
separate community services 
programs. 

Did you know? 

"Because of the importance of the 
early years to the future health and 
well-being of the individual 
throughout the life span, the first 
five years is termed the investment 
phase. Although children can 
benefit from intervention from six 
years of age on, it is more difficult 
and costly to reverse the effects of 
a poor start in life." 

-Health Canada 
1998 
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Community ffeulth c e n tre+ 

Cumberland House Health Sewices 

In keeping with the continuing vision of Saskatchewan Health in the 
restructuring of the delivery of health services, Cumberland House Health 
Centre (Village of Cumberland) on April 1, 1998 was transferred from the 
Department of Northern Services to the North-East Health District. 

During this transition year the North-East Health District has worked closely 
with the transferred staff, village, band, the new northern health districts and 
Sask Health in ensuring effective, appropriate health services that meet the 
identified health needs of the residents in Cumberland House. 

Health services supported through the North East Health District: 
- Cumberland House Health Centre 
- Pine Island Outpatient Centre 
- Dental Health Program 
- Mental Health Services 
- Public Health Services 
- Home Care Services 
- Community Health Educator 
- Head Start Program 

Cumberland House Health Centre 

Didyou know? 

The 1996 statistics sh 
unemployment rate for the 
Aboriginal population is 28% (i.e., 
one in four people unemployed) is 
extremely high compared to the 
Non-Aboriginal population at 
8.8%. Unemployment rate for 
Aboriginal people is 3 18% higher 
than Non-Aboriginal people. 

-Metis Nation of Saskatchewan Eastern 
Region 2 1998199 Annual Report 

"Research has shown that a dollar 
invested in a young child and their 
family during the critical years in 
infancy and early childhood will 
save money over time ... the 
investment in our children and their 
families must come from all fronts 
including individuals, government, 
business and community 
organizations. All levels of 
government and society must 
prioritize the allocation of 
resources to ensure all of our 
children are healthy and 
successful." 

- Saskatchewan Council on Children 
(1998, October). Second Report of 
Saskatchewan Council on Children. 
Recommendations to the Ministers 
participating in Saskatchewan's Plan for 
Children. Saskatchewan: Author. 

North-East Health District 1998199 Annual Report Page 15 



The Cumberland House Health Centre is referred to locally as the Clinic 
and provides primary care services for those living on the reserve and the 
village. Primary Care Nurses with advanced clinical skills and experience 
provide health assessm&ts, screening and referrals; basic laboratory 
services; treatment of acute and chronic disease; prescribing and 
dispensing of medications; public health services; health promotion and 
disease prevention services and pre hospital1 emergency care. The health 
centers hours are 8 am-5 pm five days a week On call services are from 5 
pm to 8 am 7 days a week. Itinerant physician services are provide 
Monday, Tuesday and Thursdays through the Nipawin Medical Group. 

Accomplishments for 1998199: 
~stablished a community advisory committee and instituted dialogue 
with representatives from village and band to review health needs and 
implement a community needs assessment 
Enhanced emergency communications through SaskTel and aidground 
ambulance 
Continuing education for staff on NEHD computer programs, email, 
internet, 
Follow up clinics for chronic diseases such as diabetes 
Public identification of emergency/arnbulance access 
Training /implementation of First Responderslsafety programs 
Recruitment and Retention package for health professionals 
Orientation to and review of current programs and services 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
Conduct a Community Needs Assessment 
Satellite Pharmacy Services 
Renovations to accommodate a third examination room for primary 
care nurse assessments/chronic care clinics and satellite pharmacy. 
Reorientation of health services towards a Population Health Model 
Development of Health Promotion and Disease Prevention strategies 
around main public health issues IE STD, teen pregnancies, parenting, 
fetal alcohol, early childhood development 
Continuing education for staff on accreditation and Quality 
Improvement(Q1) processes 

Did you know? 

That Cumberland House is the 
oldest community in the Western 
Provinces. The settlement was first 
established by Samuel Hearne in 
1774. There has been a primary 
care health services provided at 
Cumberland House since 1929. 
The Cumberland House Outpost 
Hospital was officially opened 
September, 1942. 

Did you know? 

In 1996 38,000 Saskatchewan 
residents or 3.7% of the population 
had diabetes. An estimated 8- 10 
new diabetics are diagnosed every 
day in Saskatchewan . Diabetes is 
among the ten leading causes of 
hospitalizations and deaths in 
Saskatchewan. 
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Cumberland House Dental Clinic 

The Cumberland House Dental Program caters primarily to the dental 
needs of infants, toddlers, pre-schoolers, and students enrolled in the 
Charlebois School Program. They also provide emergency examinations 
and promote dental health in the entire community. 

The dental clinic, which is situated within the school, is currently staffed 
with a Certified Dental Therapist and a Certified Dental Assistant. 

Accomplishments for 1998199: 
introduced brushing with the fluoride program 
dental health education to seniors; pre-natal and post-natal lectures 
promoted dental awareness to the entire community in during Dental 
Health Month (April) by creating a dental health fair "Tooth Fairy 
Tuesday" 
promoted prevention of Baby Bottle Tooth Decay (BBTD) via posters 
in stores, public buildings, day care centers, health centres and lectures 
to pre-teens and teenagers 
provided initial exams, screening exams, recall exams and emergency 
exams 
provided restorative treatments and palliative treatments 
classroom lectures to all age groups regarding dental disease and 
causes of dental decay 
classroom lectures regarding proper nutrition in March 
classroom presentation regarding smoking, drugs and alcohol and 
effects on oral health and health in general 
promoted oral health to seniors by visiting seniors home and lectures 
on periodontal diseases, denture care, proper nutrition, brushing and 
flossing 
provided mouth guards to the sport teams involved with school sports 
programs 
public radio broadcast promoting breastfeeding and prevention of oral 
diseases 
liaised with the NEHD in setting up an efficient and cost-effective 
dental program 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
complete all dental treatments and recall examinations of each student 
enrolled in the school program 
decrease high rate of Baby Bottle Tooth Decay among infants, toddlers 
and pre-schoolers 
increase dental health awareness in the community 
promote dental program to the Cumberland House Cree Nation similar 
to the Charlebois School dental program 
complete community needs assessment 

Did you know? 

The success of today's young 
Canadians reflects social. economic 
and civic investments made in the 
past. While things like adequate 
family incomes, stable custody 
arrangements, or access to 
affordable housing do not always 
guarantee that children and youth 
will be happy and healthy, they 
increase the odds that Canadian 
children will thrive and become 
successful, contributing citizens. 
- Canadian Council on Social Development. 
1998. The Progress of Canada's Children. 

"The Top Ten Human Rights 
Credo of Canadian Youth are: 

Be treated with respect no 
matter what our age is. 
Live in peace-free from hatred, 
war and violence. 
Express ourselves, say what 
we think - and be listened to 
when we do. 
Live in an environment with 
fresh air, clean water and no 
pollution. 
Have enough food and water. 
Have equal treatment 
regardless of race. 
Have equal treatment and 
respect regardless of whether 
we're male or female. 
Privacy. 
Feel secure and safe at all 
times. 
Protection from cruelty, 
exploitation and abuse." 

- Canadian Council on Social Development 
1998. The Progress of Canada's Children. 
Ottawa: Author 
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The Smeaton and District Health Centre (SHC) integrates a wide variety of 
health programs and is staffed with Registered Nurse (RN), Certified 
Combined Technician (CCT), and itinerant physician services. Area 
coverage includes the town of Smeaton and surrounding rura.1 area. 

The Smeaton Health Centre holds an annual Health Fair in November, on 
the anniversary date of the official opening of the health centre. Future 
plans include "The Body Walk" for children, menopause, osteoporosis and 
hormone replacement therapy. 

Accomplishments: 
Development of district-wide community health centre protocols and 
standards for progress and services were completed in October 1998. 
Participation on the Community Services Care Team, Quality 
Improvement Leadership Team and District Utilization Management 
Committee 
Saskatoon Hearing Associates provide regular services 
The "Active Living Calendar" was a success for several area residents 
in promoting healthier lifestyles 
Continuation of Arthritis Self Management program, Fun with Fitness, 
and First AidICPR courses 
Meditation workshop 

Goals: 
Smeaton will conduct a health status survey in the fall of 1999 
Medical Transfer of Function guidelines will be completed 
Development of strategies to increase staff and public knowledge on 
the population health promotion model and health determinants 
Continuing to hold annual Health Fairs 
Plan to start the HUGS (healthy eatinglliving) program in the fall 

Arborf ield 4 District ffeulfb Cure Centre 

The Arborfield and District Health Care Centre (AHC) integrates a wide 
variety of health programs and is staffed with 24-hour Registered Nurse 
(RN) services, a Certified Combined Technician (CCT) and itinerant 
physician services. Area coverage includes the town of Arborfield and 
surrounding rural district. 

A six-year study in Quebec showed 
that children who participated in 5 
hours of sport per week had I 

significantly higher marks than 
children who did not participate. 

- Canadian Medical Association 
Journal, 1992 

Children need 30 minutes of 
physical activity every day to 
improve fitness and health levels. 
90% of Canadian children 
participate less than that. 

- The Canadian Assoclation for Health, 
Physical Education and Recreation. 1992 
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Accomplishments: 
Women's Health Day 
Meter clinics offering glucome :ter checks and di etitian consultation 
Youth Counselor providing services to students at Arborfield school 
Motivational speaker sessions initiated by the Arborfield Advisory 
Group 
Utilization of laboratory and x-ray services have increased 
substantially 
Senior Workshop to acknowledge international year of the elderly 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
Motivational speaker sessions expanded to school students and parents 
Farm safety programs offered to community and school students 

Zenon PurL Community Heulfh 6 Social Cenfre 

The Zenon Park Community Health and Social Centre (ZPHC) integrates a 
I wide variety of health programs and is staffed with registered nurse (RN) 

services, a fully bilingual community health nurse, laboratory services, and 
itinerant physician services. 

Accomplishments: 
Health Fair and Wellness Clinics 
Saskatchewan graduate oriented to the Community Health Nurse 
position 
Part-time secretarial/receptionist position 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
To coordinate the Community Health Nursing role so that services are 
not fragmented 

Health 1 116 1 216 1 116.5 1 116 1 152 1 l51 1 178 1 233 
Promotion Hours 

Arborfield Health Centre 

Outpatient Visits 165 

Smeaton Health Centre 

1 995196 

Health Benefits of Exercise: 
improves mood 
boosts self confidence 
improves strength & stamina 
minimizes insomnia 
helps manage pain 
improves appetite 
reduces agitation 
reduces the risk of many health 
problems 

8 I I I I I I I 

176 

Lab Visits 

Radiology Exams 

Zenon Park Health Centre 

l998/99 1995196 

227 1 143 1 l40 1 1 nla nla nla 

I998l99 1996197 

350 
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The North-East Health District possesses and directs three nursing homes. 
All three nursing homes offer level three and level four models of care. 
These are among the highest levels of care that can be provided in a 
nursing home (long-term supportive care facility). 

Arborfield Special Care Lodge (Arborfield) 36 beds 
Pasquia Special Care Home (Carrot River) 38 beds 
Pineview Lodge & Pine Haven (Nipawin) 96 beds 

The nursing homes offer all residents a single room, giving them the 
greatest possible control over their own rooms. This maintains the privacy 
and dignity that they deserve. 

The major objectives of supportive care are: 
To provide accommodation, programs and services to individuals 
whose needs can be met more appropriately in a special care home 
than in other settings in the community. 
To provide services in the special care home to individuals who 
normally reside in their own homes, but who would benefit from a 
structured program of activities and services for a portion of the day 
(i.e. day care, night care, respite care) 

The NEHD nursing homes provide a number of services for residents and 
their families including regular family meetings, 24-hour professional 
care, respite care, adult day care, night care and pastoral care. 

The facilities also offer: resident council; activity, social and exercise 
programs; pet therapy; cable tv; hairdressinglbarber services; and regularly 
scheduled physician, pharmacist, dentist and therapist visits. 

"Canada, a society for all ages. " 
- 1999 - 

International Year of the 
Older Persons. 

Did you know? 

In Canada, our senior population 
(age 65+) currently is 12% and is 
projected to increase to 23% by the 
year 204 1 .  

I ADMISSIONS I 
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Number of Beds 

Arborfield Spec~al Care Lodge 

1996197 

3 6 

Pasquia Special Care Home 

PatientIResident Days: 

2 

0 

16 

Pineview Lodge 

1996197 

3 8 

1997197 

3 6 

1996197 

106 

0 

2,237 

10.134 

655 

94 

0 

9 

Day Program 

Nlght Care 

Resp~te 

1998199 

36 

1997198 

3 8 

23 

2 

20 

16 

7 

23 

1997198 

102 

1998199 

38 

30 

4,766 

8,459 

381 

0 

0 

Level 2 

Level 3 

Level 4 

Respite 

Day Program 

Night Care 

10 

0 

20 

1998199 

96 

0 

13,696 

21,760 

942 

1,096 

176 

0 

13,291 

24,033 

1 .290 

873 

430 

4 

5 

0 

4,666 

8.87 1 

337 

27 

0 

0 

12,529 

20,608 

897 

824 

0 

4 

0 

I I 8 

4 

10 

0 

4,820 

8.537 

374 

120 

0 

0 

3,360 

8.835 

677 

0 

0 

0 

3,134 

9.245 

640 

135 

0 



Arborfield Special Care Lodge 

Accomplishments: 
charting for long-term care standardized district-wide with the chart 
following each resident wherever they go 
development of district-wide Fall Prevention Program 
development of Performance Indicators by quality improvement teams 
dental assessments initiated by dental therapists, with consultations by 
a dentist being done at Nipawin Hospital 
dietary position descriptions reviewed and revised to address 
continuity 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
Fund-raising efforts continue to provide enhancements for the 
residents 
RUGS long-term care assessments charting system initiated 

Pa~quiu Special Care Home 

Accomplishments: 
Activity Department improvements include: 
- establishment of goals and objectives 
- update of activities 
- establishment of resident council 
- introduction of Day Care program 
TLC-Excel program established 

Pineview Lodge 

Accomplishments: 
Opening of a special unit for dementia care 
Implementation of standardized charting and 'traveling chart' among 
all long-term care facilities in the district 
Ongoing 'in-house' Home CareISpecial Care Aide program 
Implementation of "Zero Lift" program 
Successful 'Ladies Nite Out' with proceeds to Pine Haven 
First ever Accreditation status 
Staff training for MDS-RUGS - the new resident classification tool 
Implementation of 'sign as you go' medication system 
Registered Nurses at Pineview received training in I.V. Therapy which 
should reduce hospital admissions for that purpose. 
Volunteers spend countless hours decorating the lodge for every 
season and every reason. The residents, staff and families continue to 

Didyou know? 

On average, 16 out of 36 ASCL 
residents require mechanical lifts. 

On average, one third of the ASCL 
residents need to be totally fed. 

Bouquets: 

Thank you all for your compassion 
and wonderful care of my late 
husband Steve. God bless you all. 

- Anne Derkach 

Thank all of you for the excellent 
care you gave Joe over the past 
year and a half. It was a difficult 
time for our families but your 
support made it easier. 

- The Schrnitt Family 

Volunteers enrich the lives of the 
residents in a 100 ways. Each year 
an extraordinary volunteer is 
named to Pineview's Wall of 
Fame. Kay Fitton was this year's 
inductee. She joins the following 
distinguished group. 

Gladys Tebbutt 
The Golden Fiddlers 
Val Gale 
Bob & Yvette Brunelle 
Doug & Marie Pegg 
Mildred Sinatynski 
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enjoy the changing decor. 
2 LPN's who completed the SIAST medication course did their 
practicum at Pineview. 
20 staff members attended the Palliative Care Conference 
Resident Council meets on a regular basis to discuss and plan for 
special events and activities. They also use this opportunity to talk 
about their mutual concerns and special interests. 
A working group of Special Care Aides developed new work routines 
A Dental Therapist completed dental assessments on Pineview 
residents 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
One of the goals of the long-term care team is to have more 
involvement by residents and families in the decisions affecting the 
residents care. 

The "Hottest Headline" for Pineview Lodge and possibly the North-East 
Health District in 1998 was the opening of Pine Haven, which is a special 
care unit dedicated to the care of persons with Alzheimers Disease or other 
forms of dementia. 

Pine Haven is a 10 bed "home within a home" whose philosophy is to 
provide appropriate care based on peoples remaining strengths, not their 
losses. 

Pine Haven houses people from throughout the North-East Health District 
who best meet the admission criteria. We presently have residents from 
all corners of the district. 

Since the opening of Pine Haven many benefits have been realized: 
Increase in independence with activities of daily living 
Reduction of incontinence 
Reduction of medication 
Increase in participation in social events and meaningful tasks 
Reduction of aggressive behaviour 
Reduction of agitation 
Increase in opportunity to be seen as an individual 

Pine Haven has definitely made a difference in peoples lives and in the 
quality of life for those living there, as well as the rest of the building. It 
clearly is 'appropriate' care. 

Did yov know that at PVL: 
54/86 residents require total 
care with activities of daily 
living 
25/86 require complete feeding 
59/86 are cognitively impaired 
45/86 use total mechanical lifts 
30186 eat pureed food only 
There are 784 pills given in a 
24 hour period 

Didyou know? 
The Ontario Strategy on 
Alzheimer's Group will be utilizing 
the Pine Haven model in their 
recommendations. 

Some investigators believe that 
women are more prone to 
Alzheimers disease than men, but 
that men are more prone to multi- 
infarct dementia. This may be 
simply because men are more likely 
to develop vascular disease, while 
women tend to live longer and the 
incidence of Alzheimers disease 
increases with age. Researchers 
are still looking for clues. 

Reflected images can easily be 
misinterpreted by a confused 
person and the event be mistaken 
by a caregiver as a hallucination. 

Rocking back and forth in a 
rocking chair for one hour a day 
can reduce anxiety and depression 
for residents with dementia. 
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Hospital services in the North-East Health District are provided at the 
Carrot River and Nipawin Hospitals. 

The Nipawin Hospital is a 50 bed inpatient facility providing the North- 
East Health District with all manners of health care services: 

The Emergency Department is equipped to manage a variety of 
accidents or injuries that may occur within the community. 
The Outpatient Department facilitates treatment of acute and chronic 
illness, as well as minor surgical procedures. Procedures requiring a 
regional or general anaesthetic are performed in the Operating Room. 
Pediatrics provides treatment, observation, support and teaching of 
children and their families within the concept of family centered care. 
The Obstetrical Unit functions with the concept of family centered 
obstetrical care. Mothers labour and deliver in the birthing room -
rooms specially designed for the comfort of the mother and family. 
The Medical Unit provides a broad range of services including general 
nursing care, patient education, rehabilitative care, diagnostic care, 
social and psychological care, gerontological care, oncological care 
and discharge referral preparation. 
The Medical Unit also encompasses a four bed intensive care unit, 
complete with lifesaving equipment for care of critically ill patients. 
There are also a wide variety of outpatient services including 
laboratory, ultrasound, diabetic counseling, diagnostic, pharmaceutical 
counseling, rehabilitation, aboriginal health consultant, and 
chemotherapy. 

Residents of the NEHD also have access to visiting specialists through the 
Nipawin Hospital. Referrals from a local physician are required. 

Cardiology & Internal Medicine Dr. Dhingra 
Chiropodist Dr. Hauck 
Dermatology Dr. Hull, Dr. Roos 
Ear, Nose and Throat Dr. Will 
Internal Medicine & Allergy Dr. Fenton 
Neurology Dr. Stewart 
Obstetrics & Gynecology Dr. Smith, Dr. Martel, 

Dr. Clark & Dr. Ayodele 
Orthopedics Dr. O'Regan, Dr. Rerri & Dr. Shirali 
Pediatrician Dr. Bruce 
Respiratory Medicine Dr. Dosman 
Rheumatology & Immunology Dr. Markland 
Urologist Dr. Halsall 
General Surgery Dr. Shamsud Duha 

Volunteer Program 1998199 

Individual volunteers donated 
7,307 hours of service throughout 
the NEHD between March 3 1, 
1998 and April 1, 1999. There are 
also four health care auxiliaries, 
first responders and health care 
boards of directors, whose hours of 
volunteer service are not included 
in that total. 

Junior volunteers contributed 852 
hours in hospital and long-term 
care facilities during the school 
year. Adult volunteers helped in 
acute care, long-term care, home 
care, palliative care, community 
care and mental health care 
programs. 

Did you know? 

3,9 1 1 outpatient visits were 
provided by the visiting specialists 
in 1998199. 

At a conservative estimate of $1 00 
for personal travel costs to visit a 
specialist in the city, this service 
has saved our residents $39 l , ]  10 in 
out-of-pocket expenses. 
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N u r h  y S e ~ i c e ~  

Accomplishments: 
Implementation of a nurse managed ambulatory care outpatient service 
Hired an Aboriginal Liaison Worker 
Post anaesthesia standards of care 
Fetal scalp pH testing procedure 
Implemented a needleless IV therapy system 
Accommodated surgeon's office space and provided staff 
Expanded chemotherapy outreach program beyond NEHD 
Expanded staff certification programs to home care and long term care 
Provided consultative resources to other agencies internal andlor 
external to the district 
Expanded employee health to entire district 
Assisted with the development of palliative care guidelines including 
referral and palliative performance scale 
Staff education including: sport medicine clinic, computer demo, 
dementia care workshop, curing peptic ulcers, code of ethics, asthma, 
cultural relationships and communication, insulin pen demo, IV push 
meds, neonatal resuscitation program, companion telephone inservice, 
HP Codemaster Defib-Monitor, feeding inservice, air ambulance 
transfers, TLC-Excel, home care referrals 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
To submit a proposal for an occupational health service which would 
help workers and their families achieve and maintain the highest 
degree of physical, mental and social well-being 
- develop program framework 
- implement approved OH&S/employee health programs and 

policies 
- provide individual case management 
- employee health records and statistics 
- health and wellness promotion 
- claims management 
To create a working group to discuss the feasibility of expanding 
programs, including housing education clinics and treatment services, 
and minor ambulatory surgeries (outpatients) 
- develop a framework 
- consider what services and programs 
- consider space and staff requirements to meet suggested 

servicelprogram expansions 
To create working groups: 
- obstetrics - Caesarean section, vaginal delivery 
- general surgery 
- post hip fracture 

+, 

Did you know? 

Registered Nurses performed 282 
after hour EKG's at Nipawin 
Hospital. 

Outpatient visits were 16,129 

142 babies were born in 1998 

Surgical stats: 
Inpatient (overnight) 196 
Outpatienthame day 587 

Newborn infants in the NEHD can 
breathe easier thanks to Irma 
Zimmer, RN. For the past 10 years 
she has been teaching a neo-natal 
resuscitation program to physicians 
and registered nurses. 
Resuscitation of newboms involves 
aspects such as stabilization, 
airway management, intubation, 
assessment and drugs, etc. 

Irma was presented an award by 
the University of Saskatchewan 
Continuing Medical and Nursing 
Education. 
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The working groups will be responsible for evaluating sample clinical 
pathwaylcare plans, and to incorporate outcome measurement through the 
use of performance indicators. 

To investigate the feasibility of changing the physical plant make up to 
consider alternative housing of obstetrical and surgical services 

The workload has increased substantially over the past year due to the 
closure of the lab at one of the physician clinics and providing testing 
services for the Chelation Therapy Clinic. Chelation clients are 
charged for their lab services. 
Approximately two years ago, the lab started providing a home care 
collection service. The service has escalated over this time period and 
the lab is now providing this service to a number of clients. They rely 
on Home Care to assess the client to determine if it is a hardship for 
the person to come to the Hospital for their tests 
A new test was added to the electrolyte panel in the past year. This has 
increased the number of tests being done 
Glucose meters in the district have been standardized so that all sites 
are now using the same meter consumables can be purchased at a 
discount 
In the next year, the lab is planning on implementing a new technology 
and protocol for providing the Medical Transfwsion service. Training 
and education for lab staff is required prior to implementation. 

Infection Control: 

Based on provincial guidelines, district-wide protocols have been 
established for dealing with exposure to Blood Borne Pathogens. 
Additional awareness posters have been made and these will be 
distributed to all sites in the district 
A district-wide infection control manual has been established for all 
aspects of care. Infection control monitoring and reporting has been 
started at all facilities 
Working towards having more procedures standardized across the 
district and improving the monitoring of nosocomial infections in long 
term care 

Quotes: 

"Thanks to all the Nipawin 
Hospital staff for the TLC I 
received while I was sick. Please 
don't ever lose that personal caring 
touch. It is greatly appreciated 
when you're on the receiving end." 

Patient - Unit 400 

"Thanks very much for your care 
and compassion to my mom and 
grandma; also for your kindness to 
US. 

Family - Unit 400 

Didyou know? 

Nosocomial means an infection 
originating in the health care 
facility which may develop in a 
patienthesident approximately 72 
hours after admission. 
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#uf rif ion Services: 

Program Description: 
Nutrition services focuses on the overall health of the individual and the 
specific needs of each client. Within the service diabetes, heart health, 
lifestyle and specific disease education is offered in various methods. 
These methods may consist of outpatienthnpatient counseling, group 
classes, andlor phone consultation. 

Key Priorities: 
HUGS Program 
Women Weight Project 
Dietetic Intern 
Feeding Team 
Diabetes Program 

ACCOMPLISHMENTS 1998-1 999: 
Public Presentations 

Osteoporosis - assisted in promotion for Carrot River Osteoporosis 
Walk 
Palliative Care Workshop - provided display and information 
regarding eating difficulties and enteral nutritional products in 
Nipawin 
Active Living Group - presented Canada Food Guide to children in 
Carrot River 
Seniors Health Fair - provided display and handouts 
Women After 5 - presented Healthy Eating for Healthy Living 
Body Image- presented along with Public Health Nutritionist to teens 
at Carrot High School 
Heart to Heart presented to participants in Nipawin 
Heart Smart Eating - presented to groups in Carrot River and Smeaton 

Staff In services 
Lunch & Learn - insulin pen demonstration by Novo Nordisk to 
NEHD staff 
Clinical Practice Guidelines for Diabetes - presented to NEHD staff 
and medical staff 
Feeding Inservices - presented by the feeding team (Speech Language 
Pathologist, Occupational Therapist, Dietitian) to nursingldietary staff 
throughout NEHD 

Diabetes Education Program 
Diabetes Clinic - 1 daylweek in Nipawin 

- 1 daylmonth (-6 months1year)in Carrot River and 
Arborfield 

Meter Clinic - l xlmonth in Nipawin 
- 3-4xlyear in Carrot River and Arborfield 

Didyou know? 

The NEHD Aboriginal L 
Worker: 

proSides interpretive and 
liaison services between 
Aboriginal clients/patients, 
hospital and external agencies 
improves the Aboriginal 
person's understanding of the 
health care system, including 
medical regimes 
ensures that Aboriginal clients1 
patients have access to 
appropriate follow-up services 
following hospital discharge 
acts as a liaison between the 
hospital and the client in own 
community 
assists hospital personnel in 
providing effective health care 
as it relates to history taking, 
health teaching, facilitation of 
counselling and crisis 
intervention 
acts as an educational and 
cultural resource for the 
purpose of improving the 
understanding of First 
Nation's culture and values. 
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Diabetes Newsletter - distribute 4xIyear 
Diabetes Health Fair Kit - continue to distribute kit across Canada 
Diabetes Task Force - working together with PAGC, Shoal Lake, Red 
Earth and Cumberland House to coordinate services and improve 
diabetes care among the aboriginal population within the NEHD 
Focus Groups - two were held in Nipawin to gather feedback on the 
program and diabetes support in the community 
Support Group for families with children with diabetes - well attended 
by the families from Tri-district area 
Diabetes Evaluation Project - a Tri-district Initiative to develop a 
comprehensive evaluation program 
Saskatchewan Advisory Committee on Diabetes -focus of committee 
is to make recommendations to Department of Health re: strategy to 
address diabetes in Saskatchewan 

Professional Development/Education 
Diabetes and Diabetic Renal Disease Conference - Saskatoon 
Canadian Diabetes Association Conference - Calgary 
Palliative Care Workshop - Nipawin 
Cultural Relations and Communications Workshop - Nipawin 
Orientation to MDS-RUGS - Nipawin 
Community and District Dietitian meetings - 4xIyear 

HUGS Program 
This is a 8 week nondiet lifestyle program. The program focuses on 

feeling good, eating well and getting active. It is not a weight loss 
program but is intended for those frustrated with the dieting cycle and 
encourages people to feel good about thekselves no matter what the scales 
say. 

currently 32 participates have completed the program (program began 
running in NEHD in Jan'99) 

Other 
Long-term care screening tool developed 
March was nutrition month. Displays, quiz and prizes were provided 
throughout the district. 
Women Weight Project was developed as tri-district project and 
launched in NEHD in 1999 
Dietetic intern spent a three week rotation within in our department 

Didyou know? 

The NEHD Diabetes Team 
saw more than 450 diabetic 
clients last year 

We mailed out over 1200 
newsletters to our diabetic 
clients in the past year 

Didyou know? 

The World Health Organization 
cites an alarming increase in 
diabetes. The number of diabetics 
world-wide is expected to double 
by the year 2025. 
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Clinical Statistics 

Total individuals seen by Dietitian 

Diabetes 

462 

Heart Health 

163 

Lifestyle 

74 

Other 

123 

Broken 
"'PP~. 

186 

Total 

1008 



Rudi010gy Services 
Accomplishments: ' 

0 Replaced Room 1 with a new Picker Digital Imaging system which 
resulted in 75% less radiation to the patient, no more 9x9 films used, 
printing on paper which is cheaper. The printer enables us to print on 
paper or polyester film. 
Added the old ceiling tube mount from Room I to Room I1 which 
enables x-ray to do patients on stretchers using the chest stand already 
in the room. This works very well when Room I is busy during the day 
with fluoroscopy. We could not do stretcher patients before as the 
tube in Room I1 only works over the table. 
Ultrasound has been attached to the printer so all ultrasound pictures 
can be printed on paper as well. This is a much faster process. 
Electrocardiograms are done on Pineview Lodge residents at Pineview. 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
Maintain current staff level and expertise in case of retirements or staff 
moving out of town. In the next five years, 75 technologists will be 
retiring in the province. 
The Radiology Advisory Committee will be recommending the intake 
of students be 16 per year, not 16 every two years as they do now to 
stay equal with the retirements. 
X-ray is in the process of planning to do the insertion of PJG (feeding) 
tubes for patients who have them in place and need these tubes 
replaced. These patients now have to travel to Royal University 
Hospital in Saskatoon which is the only place in the province currently 
doing this procedure. 
Finding and purchasing a new x-ray computer program which is Y2K 
compatible and will network with the ADTICPI (admission, discharge, 
transferlcentral patient index) system. 
Maintain and continue upgrading equipment to produce the highest 
quality x-ray filmslpaper possible. 

Pharmacy Services 
The biggest change to the pharmacy department was starting to supply 
Cumberland House Health Centre with stock medication. This included 
revisions to their formulary, streamlining the ordering process and 
facilitating the development of a satellite community pharmacy. 

Expenditures on drugs increased by almost $30,000 at Nipawin Hospital. 
This was due to the use of alteplase (TPA), an agent for the treatment of 
myocardial infarction (heart attack). Use of the alternate agent, 
streptokinase, is generally associated with an increased mortality of 1 
person for every 100 treated. Therefore, using TPA will save one life at 

Didyou know? 

A patient came to our radiology 
department after seeing a gastro- 
enterologist in Saskatoon, telling us 
he could not speak highly enough 
about our G1 films and paper. He 
commented several times about 
what an excellent quality our films 
and paper were. 

A gentleman patient stopped by the 
radiology office to inform us how 
efficient and excellent the service 
in the department was. He had a 
broken leg and said the service was 
very good each time he came in. 

The Nipawin Region Health 
Foundation contributed $376,997 
to the NEHD in the 1998199 fiscal 
year. This generous donation 
included: 

250,000 Nipawin Hospital 
Fluoroscopy Unit 
$100,000 Nipawin Hospital 
Capital Equipment 
$20,000 Nipawin Hospital 
Staff Education 
$6,283 Pineview Lodge - Pine 
Haven (Dementia) Unit 
$7 14 NEHD Miscellaneous 
Donations 

The support of the Foundation is 
essential in maintaining and 
updating equipment for the benefit 
of all residents of the Health 
District. Thank you! 
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Nipawin Hospital every 5-6 years, at a cost of about $150,000. The cost- 
per-life-year gained is calculated to be about $32,000 when using TPA 
instead of streptokinase: theoretically for our entire population, we saved 
one year of life by choosing TPA. TPA accounted for 28% of Nipawin 
Hospital drug expenditures. 

P h y ~ i ~ f  heropy Services 

Physiotherapy provided staff, client and public education sessions: 
Exercise and Diabetes for the Live Well Everyday diabetes group 
Back care and injury prevention for home care workers from the 
district's three reserves 
Inservices with the Occupational Therapist for PVL staff on: 
- skin breakdown and splinting 
- hip and knee replacements 
- strokes - prevention and rehabilitation 
Osteoporosis at Nipawin's Senior Health Fair 
Muscles and Bones station of Body Walk at Carrot River Health Fair 
Back Care classes for clients (by physician referral) 

Clinical experience was provided for two physical therapy students - 9 
weeks in total. 

Renovations created a physio gym which houses the following exercise 
and treatment equipment: leg weight bench, arm pulley system, treadmill, 
parallel bars, large treatmentlexercise mat and other therapy equipment. 
This room is also used for staff inservices. 

Human Resources 

The District is investigating an EmployeeIFamily Assistance Program 
(EFAP). A Committee has been formed to implement this program in 
1999. 

Effective January 1, 1999 the SAHO Retirement Plan implemented 
improvements that included the removal of the minimum age 55 
requirement and the use of the highest four years average earnings instead 
of the highest five years in the pension formula. 

"I am writing in appreciation of the 
care shown to my daughter and our 
family at the Nipawin Hospital this 
last while. 

During the last week of May, 
my daughter was rushed to the 
RUH in Saskatoon with premature 
labor. The care and concern shown 
to us in Nipawin, before our 
departure was exceptional. 
Everyone from reception to nursing 
to the doctors (Chemesky & 
Smiljic) will not be forgotten. 

We in the NEHD are fortunate 
to have an excellent staff, complete 
with a caring heart. I am proud to 
be part of 'THIS' health care team. 

Thanks for helping to do a 
fantastic job of keeping the word 
CARE in HEALTHCARE." 

- F.H., Nipawin 

Didyou know? 

The North-East Health District 
employs over 530 employees. 

80% of our operating budget, or 
$33,000 per day is spent on staff 
salaries. 

Health Sector paid in 1997 and 
1998. .  . 

$17.7 and $19.8 million on 
WCB premiums 
$6.1 and $6.7 million on 
Disability Income Plan 
premiums 
$2 1.4 and $24.2 million in 
direct sick leave benefits 
.9 and l .O million hours of 
unpaid sick leave lost time 
$14.7 and $20 million in sick 
leave replacement time 
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The Carrot River Hospital is an 18 bed (5 pediatric, 13 adult) acute care 
facility providing: 

24-hour medical services on-call 
24-hour registered nurse (RN) services 
lab and x-ray services 
pediatric, palliative, obstetrical postpartum, minor out-patient surgery 
and respite care 
minor OR and OPD procedures 

NEHD staff provide the following clinic and consulting services: 
dietetic counseling monthly 
occupational therapy twice monthly 
physiotherapy services twice monthly 
mental health counseling weekly 
addictions counseling twice weekly 
Sask Forest Products E.A.P. program monthly 
health clinics monthly - including blood sugar and blood pressure 
monitoring along with foot care 

Accomplishments: 
Establishment of Acute Care Utilization Committee 
Implementation of CIHI recommendations completed 
Medical Chart Audit Committee established 
Nipawin physicians providing third weekend on-call coverage 
Emergency services and response protocols reviewed and revised 

Joint Projects - Carrot River Hospital & Pasquia Special Care Home: 
Carrot River Hospital Laboratory and Carrot River Pharmacy 
established blood sugar meter clinics 
Infection Control Committee accomplishments: 
- established manual, goals and objectives 
- introduced NEHD needlestick injury protocol 
- provided educational programs for staff 
Accreditation status achieved - 'Hats Off to Carrot River health care 
staff and CQI teams 

Carrot River Community Events: 
Needs assessment to determine the need for a Handivan service 
1" annual Health Fair in March 1998 
'Arm Chair' exercise in disaster planning 

Did you kno W? 

There are six fluoride mouth- 
rinse programs involving 645 
students, running in the 
NEHD. This topical fluoride 
strengthens the tooth enamel 
and can reduce decay by 25%. 

All new momslparents receive 
a package on dental care for 
the infant and family. 

There is a Dental Health 
Preschool kit available to all 
preschools, day cares and 
library story-times with 
interesting lessons and 
activities related to dental 
health. 

The Dental Health Educator 
provides presentations, on 
request, on the dangers of 
Smokeless Tobacco to 
elementary and high school 
students. 
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'ION 
1 

NEHD HOSPITAL INFORMA 

GENERAL 

Number of Beds 

ADC-Adult 
(includes adult & respite) 

Carrot River Hosp~tal Nipawin Hospital 

1996197 

18 

ALS-Newborn 

DischargeslSeparations 
- Adult 

1996197 

50 

34.0 1 

DischargesISeparations 
- Newborn 

1997198 

18 

3.03 

2,437 

General 

Specialist Visits 

l997198 

50 

29.34 

1998199 

18 

174 

Surgery - Category I & I1 

1998199 

5 0 

26.34 

3 

2,198 

15,292 

2,198 

Radiology Units 

ADC: average number of patients per day nia. not applicable 

140 

589 

Physiotherapy Units 

Surgery 

ALS: average length of stay per patient 

2.75 

2,033 

16,116 

3,l 16 

I I I I 

81,178 

Physicium Services 

142 

5 19 

30,961 

210 

The physician manpower and planning committee have established that a 
minimum of 12 or 13 general practitioners will meet the needs of our 
district. Ideally, two of these general practitioners (GP) should be GP/ 
Anaesthetists and two should be GPISurgeons. There are currently 10 
general practitioners in Nipawin and 2 in Carrot River. The general 
practitioners in Nipawin also provide services by way of satellite clinics in 
the following communities: 

Smeaton Health Centre 1 half day per week 
Choiceland Clinic 1 half day per week 
Cumberland House Clinic 3 days per week 
Red Earth Clinic 2 days per week 
Shoal Lake Clinic 1 day per week 

3.82 

368 

16.129 

3,91 1 

58,374 

The two general practitioners that are located in Carrot River also provide 
services to the following communities: 

Arborfield Health Centre 2 half days per week 
Zenon Park Health Centre one evening per week 

10 

587 

29,470 

188 

Carrot River Physicians: 
Dr. Mark Fowler 
Dr. J.A. Van Niekerk 

2.57 

3 09 

1,886 

n/a 

54,352 

Nipawin Physicians: 
Dr. K. Balakrishnan 
Dr. P. Chernesky 
Dr. S. Cronje 
Dr. G. Jacobs 
Dr. B. Karras 
Dr. G. Klein 
Dr. Shamsud Duha 
Dr. D. Smiljic 
Dr. S. Sookdeo 
Dr. A. Watson 

3.83 

3 17 

7 

n/a 

34,108 

196 
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1,859 

nia 

8,954 

2,180 

n/a 

n/a 

nla 

n/a 

~p 

nla 

7,626 9,029 

n/a 

nla 

nla 

nia 



Of fices be/d by NEUV Physician s 

Dr. K. Balakrishnan - Chief of Medical Staff 

The Chief of Staff is appointed by and accountable to the District 
Health Board, to be in charge of the medical staff organization. He is 
responsible for ensuring the medical staff carry out their assigned 
functions including compliance with hospital, medical and other 
bylaws; rules and regulations. He monitors the appointment and re- 
appointment of physicians to the medical staff and attends pertinent 
medical and hospital committees. 
Dr. Balakrishnan is a graduate of the University of Ceylon Medical 
School and has post-graduate training in surgery, urology and family 
practice. He holds a Fellowship from the Royal College of Surgeons 
in England. 
Bala, along with his wife Mathe and two daughters, have made their 
home in Nipawin since 1988. 

Dr. Gunther Klein - President of the North-East District 
Medical Staff 

The president is elected by and accountable to the medical staff and is 
responsible for representing the interests of the medical staff as a 
whole, and for speaking on behalf of its individual members. The 
president chairs medical staff meetings, communicates with the Board 
and senior management, and is a member of specific hospital and 
medical committees. 
Dr. Klein is a graduate of the University of Pretoria, South Africa and 
also holds a Diploma in Anaesthesia from the South African College 
of Medicine. 
Gunther, along with his wife Terry and daughter Gina, have made their 
home in Nipawin since 1997. 

Dr. Bev Karras - SMA Board Member 

Dr. Karras is presently the honourary treasurer of the Saskatchewan 
Medical Association. The SMA is a voluntary organization of 
physicians which negotiates on behalf of physicians; advocates for 
physicians, patients and health care; and is affiliated with the Canadian 
Medical Association. 
Dr. Karras has been the Carrot River & District education.coordinator 
for several years and is a past president of the medical staff. 
Dr. Karras is a graduate of the University of Saskatchewan Medical 
School and has been in general practice in Nipawin since 1989. 
Bev, her husband Bruce and two sons live in Nipawin. 
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Conxo/idafion of Uea/fh Sewices in Carrof Rivet 

In response to a request from the community for input, the Carrot River 
Health Planning Committee was formed to propose and investigate ideas, 
options and solutions, and to reach a consensus regarding the provision of 
health services in Carrot River. 

On February 23, 1999, the North-East District Health Board submitted to 
Saskatchewan Health a proposal for the consolidation of health services in 
Carrot River. 

The proposal was based upon the collective input of the Carrot River 
Planning Committee, North-East Health District, Saskatchewan Health, 
and detailed space requirements provided by the Carrot River Hospital and 
Pasquia Special Care Home staff. The new integrated facility will provide 
an improved environment for long term residents including acute care, 
palliative care, respite care and long term care beds. The proposal detailed 
the programs that will be provided in the new integrated facility. 

The decision to consolidate health services in Carrot River at the Pasquia 
Special Care Home site was extremely difficult and was not made lightly. 

The North-East District Health Board and the Carrot River Planning 
Committee have looked at many alternatives and believe that the plan to 
consolidate services will meet the needs of the community and will result 
in more efficient and effective use of resources, now and into the future. 

Participation on the Planning 
Committee has included 
representatives from the: 

Town of Carrot River 
RM of Moose Range 
North-East Health District 
Town of Arborfield 
Village of Zenon Park 
RM of Arborfield 
Carrot River Hospital Staff 
Pasquia Special Care Home 

Staff 
Carrot River Physicians 
Carrot River Senior Citizens 
Carrot River Industry 
Department of Health 

The new integrated facility will 
provide for: 

consolidation of health 
services at the Pasquia Special 
Care Home site 
special care home beds 
multipurpose hospital beds 
(acute, observation, etc.) 
long-term care swing beds 
(respite, palliative, etc.) 
x-ray and lab services 
examination and emergency 
rooms 
wellness area 
community services area 
improved areas for long term 
care residents (larger living 
room, dining room, activity 
room) 
improved support areas 
(laundry, kitchen, etc.) 
general upgrades and 
improvements 
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W7H+AS7 HOME CARE 

me Care can assist or enable individuals to maintain independence in 
ir usual places of residences. Home Care's primary objective is to 
ist individuals in living independently and with dignity in their own 
ne, near family and friends and essentially assist them in doing ordinary 
~ g sthat make life pleasant. It is also Home Care's objective to delay 
g-term institutional care and to prevent people from going into nursing 
nes too early, also to shorten or delay admissions to hospital. 

Home Care services are accessible to individuals from 
any age group and income level. According to the 
Saskatchewan Health Coalition, "The typical home care 
client in Saskatchewan is an elderly widowed female 
living alone." However, home care services are not 
restricted to services for seniors. Home Care can provide 

- services to any age group from infants to the very elderly. 

Among the services offered by Home Care, are the following: Nursing, 
Meals on Wheels, Homemaking (including personal care, home 
management and respite care), Palliative Care Services, Placement in 
long-term care facilities, Day Activity Program, Respite Care and 
Volunteer programs. 

Overview of the Programs and Services provided by Home Care: 
Assessment, care-coordination and ~ & e~ a n a ~ e m e n t  
Nursing - registered nurses perform a variety of nursing procedures 
as prescribed by a physician. 
Meals on Wheels, Frozen meals and in some cases, in supportive 
living units, communal dining. 
Homemaking and Personal Care -assistance with bathing, dressing, 
feeding and bedside care is provided by trained Home Health Aides 
Volunteer Services -may provide friendly visits, telephone 
reassurance, meal delivery and palliative care 
Respite Care for caregivers 
Placement in long-term care facilities -Home Care is the Single 
Point of Entry 
Handivan approvals 
Supplemental nursing services for health centers, on weekends and 
holidays, in Zenon Park and Smeaton 
Home Care networks with long-term care, acute care and with other 
community services such as Public Health, Occupational Therapy, etc. 
Foot Care and Wellness Clinics 
Multi-disciplinary approach to client-centered care 

Did you know? 

That North-East Health 
District Home Care services 
provided services to more than 
530 clients during 1998-99. 

By the year 2000 the elderly 
population is predicted to be 
13% of the general population 
and by 2030, to be 22%, with 
the most rapid rise among 
those older than 85 years of 
age. (Journal of ER Nursing. 
April 1998) 

That respite services provide 
caregivers with time to relax, 
socialize and perform everyday 
tasks by relieving them from 
their duties for periods from a 
few hours to several weeks. 
These services support and 
strengthen the family or other 
support system, enabling the 
dependent person to remain at 
home, and delaying or 
preventing long-term care 
institutionalization. For 
information contact Home 
Care offices at: 

862-9822 or 
768-3 15 1 
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Accomplishments during 1998-1999: 
Palliative Care Coordinator position established 
Provision of practicum experience for Home CareISpecial Care Aide 
course graduates 
Home Care nurses participate regularly at Meter Clinics, sponsored by 
the North-East Health District Diabetes Education Program 
Participation in Sask. Health's Integrated Case Management 
production through the Sask. Communication Network 
Attendance at Provincial Risk Management In Home Care presentation 
- in service and information presented for all staff 
Involvement with Seniors organizations in monthly presentations and 
organization of a Senior's Health Fair in Nipawin 
Partnering with Nipawin Senior's organization in provision of monthly 
wellness and foot care clinics 
Delivery of monthly wellness and foot care clinics in Carrot River 
Quick Response bed pilot project implemented and evaluated. This 
program was implement to offer an alternative for individuals 65+ 
years not requiring acute support services, but unable to be managed at 
home in time of crisis 
Ongoing partnering with the Nipawin Housing Authority and the Town 
of Nipawin in the Jubilee Place Supportive Living Unit. 
Client Satisfaction Survey was conducted to evaluate Home Care 
Services. 200+ surveys were sent to clients and families. 50% 
responded. Survey indicated that generally clients felt that services 
received were very satisfactory. 
Establishment of Case Manager positions in both Nipawin and Carrot 
River. 
Establishment of a Treatment Room in the Community Services Wing 
of the hospital accommodates home care clients who require various 
nursing procedures. 
Development of a format for gathering statistical information in Home 
Care 
Establishment of team block meetings to improve client care and 
promote quality of care 
Expansion of home care case management hours in Carrot River, 
Arborfield, Aylsham and Zenon Park areas. 
Development of new referral tool to address consistency and improve 
gathering of Home Care statistics 

Priorities for the future: 
Ongoing continuing education for all home care staff 
Continue to promote and develop the client-centered case management 
process 
Improved information-gathering and reporting system designed 
specifically for Home Care which will also accommodate and 
streamline the billing process 

Quotes from clients: 

- "I couldn't have stayed out of 
hospital without Home Care." 

- "I feel more places like Jubilee 
place could be built. There are 
a lot of people that need that 
kind of care but there are not 
enough facilities to 
accommodate them." 

- "Thank you so very much. 
The Home Care staff are great 
and we enjoy them all. Home 
Care is a good service. I don't 
know how I could have ever 
managed without their help 
and kindnesses." 
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Ongoing standardization of existing programs district-wide 
Integration with other community services, education and other health 
professionals regarding the unique role of Home Care in the continuum 
of client care 
Ongoing promotion of Home Care as a community service 
Activity Program specific to clients in Jubilee Place 
Development of a Community Seniors Program in partnership with 
Public Health Nurses 
Public Education regarding Home Care Service 
Continued review and development of Home Care Policy 
Elder Abuse Education -for staff, other health professionals and the 
public 
Public Education re Advanced Health Directives 

Home Care Utilization: 

Meals on Wheels 16709 18484 19897 23349 


Homemaking - Personal Care 13499 20399 23812 28214 


Homemaking - Home Management 1369 1 9252 8300 4913 


Nursing (client care only) 4493 49 14 4626 3914 


GENERAL 1996197 1997198 1998199 


PatiedResident Days: 454 228 0 

Day Program 

ADMISSIONS 

Day Program I 

Night Care 1 

Respite 23 10 12 


The Canadian Federation of 
Agriculture states, "Between 1990-

96, 70% of all farm deaths in 
Canada resulted from working with Jor around agricultural machinery. 
Hundreds more were injured, some P

seriously enough to cause lost work 
time or permanent disabilities." 

Did you know? 

Heart Disease and Stroke is the #l J 
cause of death for women in 
Canada. 
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Quick Response Bed 

The Quick Response bed is a pilot project which was developed by North- 
East Health District Home Care and is housed at Pineview Lodge. The 
project has been operational since November 1997, however due to the 
unavailability of space at Pineview Lodge during the construction of Pine 
Haven, operation was suspended from March to May 1998. 

The primary goal of the Quick Response Bed is the provision of an 
alternate service for individuals over the age of 65 who do not require 
acute care observation or acute care support service. Secondary goals are: 
the prevention of avoidable admissions of individuals over 65 who present I 
at hospital emergency departments for social and non-emergent reasons; 

) provision of crisis interventiodemergency respite services to clients 
outside of acute care, including those whose support system has broken 
down; and, the promotion of community-based living through 
collaborative discharge planning by the caregivers and Home Care. 

Admissions to the Quick Response program are coordinated through 
North-East Health District Home Care Services andlor the physicians in 
the Emergency Room department. Potential clients are determined 
appropriate for the Quick Response Program utilizing specific admission 
criteria. 

The Quick Response Unit's purpose evolved around discharge planning. 
In view of this purpose, the length of stay has been designated as "up to 
four days." In exceptional cases the length of stay may be extended to 
seven days. A client's stay may be extended only if discharge planning is 
proceeding and identified community support is available with 3 - 4 days. 

Services provided to the clients of the Quick Response include: 
interdisciplinary assessment; community-based care planning; client and 
family teaching and support; recreation and socialization opportunities; 
support services such as dietary and laundry; physician coverage. 

3 
Discharge planning is an important component. Home Care begins 

I discharge planning within 24 hours of admission to the program with the 
exception of weekends. They determine key individuals to be involved 
with the plan, such as the client, family or caregiver, staff, physician, etc. 
Generally, individuals are discharged back to the community or to a 
facility that provides nursing care, dependent upon individual needs and as 
determined by the assessment process. 

An evaluation of the Quick Response Program was undertaken at the end 
of December 1998. During that time the bed was available for 330 days 
and was utilized 15% of the time for a total of 976 hours. Results 

Quotes from families and 
caregivers re Quick Response 
program: 

" I  think the program is 
valuable. " 

"It made vie feel good to see 
my husband settle in so quickly. " 

Quick response clients were 
discharged to the following: 

- 41% to respite within the 
district 

- 25% returned home 
- 8% were admitted to a 

personal care home 
- 25% were admitted to an 

acute care facility 

The average age of clients admitted 
was as follows: 

- 67% were between ages of 
80 to 90 years 

- 17% were 70 to 80 years 
- 16% were 90 to l00 years 
- none were between the 

ages of 65 to 70 
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indicated that during this period, there had been 12 admissions to the bed 
and that 50% of those admissions were admitted from the community. 
The following were some reasons cited for admission: caregiver 
stress/breakdown; care needs exceeded community resources and need for 
alternate care arrangements. 75% of the admissions occurred on a 
weekday as opposed to a weekend. The length of stay for clients was 
within the guidelines with the exception of one case. 

PALLIATIVE CARE: 

Palliative Care is a program of active, compassionate, and coordinated 
care directed towards improving the quality of life for the dying person 
and for their family. Care is delivered by a multi-disciplinary team of 
trained caregivers. Care is designed to meet the physical, social, 
emotional and spiritual needs of the dying person and their family. Care is 
provided during illness, at death and throughout the period of 
bereavement. 

The goals of the Palliative Care Program are as follows: 
to improve the quality of life 
to provide support and comfort so that peace of mind and body are 
possible 
to ensure personal dignity in all things until death 
to foster a sense of hope surrounding the anticipated death 

Did you know? 

One in nine Canadian women is 
expected to develop breast cancer 
in her lifetime and one out of every 
25 is expected to die from it. 

-Health Canada, 
April 1999 

Cancer Bureau website: 
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A request for palliative care may be made to any health district staff or to 
your physician. Services are coordinated by North-East Health District 
Home Care. Services may include the following: 

professional assessment for service needs 
ongoing care coordination 
nursing care 
homemaking 
personal care 
respite care 
pharmacist consultation 
dietitian consultation 
pastoral care 
occupational therapy consultation 
professional counseling 
bereavement follow up 
volunteer services 
education programs 
resources available - books, videos, tapes, etc. 

Accomplishments: 
Palliative Care Coordinator position established in the NEHD 
Striving for consistency of service access throughout the district 
Furnishings purchased for palliative care room at Carrot River 
Hospital by donations and through fund-raising 
Our district program presented its program at two-week nurses' 
palliative training in Regina 

also at four day physician palliative care workshop in Saskatoon 
and at U of S Health Care administration Certificate program 

New referral process introduced producing more accuracy in keeping 
district-wide statistics 

Health Promotion strengthens the skills and capacities of individuals, 
groups, organizations and communities to address the underlying social 

l and economic conditions and physical environments that affect health. 
C Initiatives throughout the year have facilitated the process of enabling 

NEHD residents to increase control over the broad determinants of heal. 
and thereby improve their health and well being. 

ACCOMPLISHMENTS 1998-99: 
Health Fairs hosted by the communities of Smeaton, Arborfield, Zenon 
Park, and Carrot River. 
First Aid and CPR training available to all residents in the district. 
Emergency First Aid Instruction to Grade 10 students, teachers and bus 
drivers in the Nipawin area. 

A daughter, from untarlo, vwted 
our office to express her thanks for 
the palliative ser\ ices her father 
had received. She said, "I never 
dreamed a small town could 
provide the care my dad received 
both in his home. and during the 
two days he spent in the hospital." 
She went on also to offer her 
thanks "...for the follow up care 
you gave to our mother." 

"You couldn't have done anything 
better. It was godsend that the 
nurses came It helped us so much. 
Thank you." 

". . . to know love and peace to the 
last, to live until 1 . o ~  die." by Dame 
Cecile Saunders is the mandate of 
the Sask. Palliative Care 
Association and is reflected on the 
North-East Health District 
pamphlets. 

Did you know? 

That many factors affect your 
health. These Determinants of 
Health include: 

Income and Social Status 
Social Support Networks 
Education 
Employment and Working 
Conditions 
Physical Environments 
Biology and Genetics 
Personal Health Practices and 
Coping Skills 
Healthy Child Development 
Health Services 
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Community Wellness Grants 
STD Prevention Program involving education sessions, resource 
library and access to condoms. 
Healthy Lifestyle Days for students across the district. 
Fly Higher ( Heart and Stroke Foundation of Saskatchewan), a 
program aiming to reduce tobacco usage among young women and 
improve overall health. 
Youth Career days. 
Collaboration with Nipawin Interagency Group in addressing the needs 
of youth and families at risk, i.e. Youth Centre. 
Partnership with the Nipawin and Tisdale School Divisions to 
implement Youth Counselor Position. 
Active Living community initiatives 
Health Tips on CJVR Radio. 
Breast Feeding Support Program 
Community Action Group Against Family Violence: "Mirror Image" 
drama presentation for the community and all division 3 and 4 students 
across the district. 
Young Parents Mentoring Program. 
Childrens Development Group Program. 
"Mooo ... ve Your Bones" Osteoporosis Walk in Carrot River. 
Wellness Education programs at Nipawin Seniors Center 
International Year of Older Persons - Seniors Health Fair in Nipawin. 
Back Classes to address proper back care and injury prevention. 
Diabetes Education Program involving individual counseling, group 
classes, public presentations and displays, and access to a resource 
library. 
Meter Clinics are held in Nipawin, Arborfield and Carrot River 
allowing clients to have the accuracy of their meters determined. 
Heart to Heart Program conducted three times during the year. 
Arthritis Self Management Program accessible throughout the district. 
"Body Walk" an interactive health fair for grade 3-6 students featured 
at the Carrot River Health Fair and will be hosted for all other schools 
in the district. 
Tri-district Eating Disorder Workshop 
Accreditation in the fall of 1998 

KEY PRIORITIES FOR THE FUTURE: 
Enhance Health Promotion and Disease Prevention by: 

Evaluating programming for CPRIFirst Aid, Diabetes, Heart Health 
and other community based initiatives. 
Developing strategies for a comprehensive cardiac education program. 
Incorporating prevention strategies into health education for children, 
youth, adults, and seniors. 
Developing strategies that will facilitate personal responsibility for 
health. 

Didyou know? 

Nipawin, White Fox, Codette and 
Love have Community Access 
Program5 (CAP) funded by 
Industry Canada. 

CAP has three community goals: 
public intemet access 
intemet education 
community web site 
development 

Did you know? 

If you wish to use the lntemet to 
access safety information, the 
following are only a few of the best 
farm safety related websites chosen 
by the Canadian Federation of 
Agriculture: 

Agriculture Canada CASP 
Programs: 
http://www.agr.ca/policy/adapt 
/casp.html 
Canadian Centre for 
Emergency Preparedness: 
http://www.ccep.ca 
Canadian Federation of 
Agriculture: http://www.cfa- 
fca.ca 
Canadian Red Cross: 
http://www.redcross.ca 
Centre for Agricultural 
Medicine: 
http:Nwww.usask.ca/medicine/ 
agmedicinel 
Emergency Preparedness 
Canada & Environment 
Canada: http:/lhoshi.cic.sfu.ca~ 
safeguard 
Farm and Ranch Safety and 
Health Association: 
http://www. farsha.bc.ca 
John Deere Limited: 
http://www.deere.com 
St. John Ambulance: 
http://www.sja.ca 
Farm Safety 4-Just Kids: 
http://www.fs4jk.org/ 

North-East Health D~strict 1998199 Annual Report Page 40 



p p p p p 

Public Health Nursinp Propram Descri~tion 

Communicable disease and sexually transmitted disease control 
Maternal Child Health: Child Health Clinics, pre and post-natal home 
visits, prenatal education, breastfeeding counseling, pregnant 
adolescent support program 
Parenting education 
Immunization programs: preschool, school age, adult, international 
travel, Flu program. 
Health promotion: community presentations and assessment 
School Health Program: immunization, education and screening 
Community Development: participation in grass roots community 
driven committees and collaboration on various community projects 
on request. 

Public Health Nurses work collaboratively with health professionals in the 
host district, North Central Health District, who provide services in the 
North-East Health District. These public health services include: 

Public Health Inspection 
Dental Health Educator 
Early Childhood Psychologist 
Speech and Language Pathologist 
Audiology 
Nutritionist 
Medical Health Officer 

Accomplishments of 1998 / 1999 

Body Walk debuted at Carrot River's Active Living Health Fair - an 
interactive health fair designed for elementary aged students to 
promote healthy lifestyles and awareness of healthy body systems. 
This was a collaborative effort with the physiotherapist, public health 
nutritionist, school division counsellor, dental health educator, 
community health educator and public health nurses under the 
direction of Janice Clarke, PHN. The teachers evaluations indicated it 
was an excellent presentation and will use Body Walk as a springboard 
to more in depth study as it follows the new school curriculum well. 
Future plan is to take the Body Walk presentation to schools 
throughout the NEHD over a 3 year schedule. 

International Travel - 24 1 international travel immunizations were 
given this year compared to 97 international travel immunizations 
given in 97/98. 

Did You Know? 

Public Health Nurses gave 5 16 
Hepatitis B immunization. 

Public Health Nurses gave 165 
Tetanus Immunizations in 
school age children. 

Public Health Nurses gave 172 
MeaslesIRubella 
Immunizations. 

Public Health Nurses gave 24 1 
International Travel 
Immunizations. 

Public Health Nurses gave 961 
Flu shots. 

Didyou know? 

1493 residents of the NEHD 
received flu vaccine during the 
1998199 Flu campaign and 155 
residents received Pneumococcal 
vaccine 
1 12 new cases of Tuberculosis and 
4 relapsed cases were reported in 
Saskatchewan in 1996. The new 
provincial case rate was 1 1 per 
100,000 population .There were 
two deaths from TB in 1996. 
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Accreditation was a learning experience for the PHNs. We completed 
goals, objectives and performance indicators for our program. The 
feed back we received from the accreditation committee regarding our 
services was extremely positive. 
Preschool l Parent Education Project - a collaborative effort between 
the Nipawin School Division, Alex Wright School, Town of Nipawin, 
Metis Association, Social Services, Public Health, Nipawin Day Care 
Co-op, and Nutrition for Kids, to initiate a preschool / parent education 
project. A leader and helper were hired to provide a preschool 
program for 3 & 4 year olds and guest speakers provide education to 
parents on their topics of choice. Three sessions ran with great 
success; very positive parent feed back was received. 

Key Priorities 
To become fully operational on the Saskatchewan Immunization 
Management System. This will see all immunization records entered 
on a province wide data base. This will enhance immunization rates 
by decreasing delay in obtaining current immunization status. 
To foster growth toward optimum level of health for all residents by 
establishing partnerships with communities, families, and individuals, 
Public Health. 
To maintain continuous quality improvement by evaluating current 
programs and services. 
To maintain immunization rates at 95% in the preschool and school 
age population. 
Continuing education remains a priority particulary in the area of 
immunization and international travel due to the increasing number of 
requests for this service. 

LOW BIRTH WEIGHT (<=2500 grams) 
Number 
% o f  all live births 

SASK 

26,150 

1995 & 1996 

NUMBER OF LIVE BIRTHS 

HlGH BIRTH WEIGHT (>=4000 grams) 
Number 
% o f  all live births 

PRETERM LIVE BIRTHS I I 

NEHD 

358 

17 
4.7% 

HlGH BIRTH WEIGHT (>=4500 grams) 
Number 
% of all live births 

1,392 
5.3% 

79 
22.1% 

3,596 
13.8% 

16 
4.5% 

(under 37 weeks gestation) 
Number 
%of  all live births 

HOW TO WASH 
YOUR HANDS PROPERLY 

594 
2.3% 

BIRTHS TO SINGLE MOTHERS UNDER 20 
YEARS OF AGE 

Number 
% of all live b~rths 

Turn on taps for lukewarm 
water. 

Wet hands and apply soap to 
all aspects of hands. 

17 
4.7% 

Rub palms together. 

1,795 
6.9% 

48 
13.4% 

Interlace fingers to clean 
spaces in between. 

2,801 
10.7% 

Rub fingers, back of hands and 
wrists. 

Rinse all aspects of hands 
under running water. 

Dry hands with paper towels. 

Turn off taps using paper 
towels. 

Use a paper towel to turn the 
door handle to exit the 
washroom.. 

Drop paper towels in 
wastebasket. 
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Emer yen cy Medical Service+ 

EMS in the NEHD is under contract to Les Coulthard operating as North- 
East EMS with base locations in Nipawin and Carrot River. 

Ambulance service is provided 24 hours per day 365 days per year and the 
3 ambulances are manned by 12 full time and 3 part time staff members 
who are trained to the levels of Emergency Medical Technician (EMT), 
Emergency Medical Technicians Advanced (EMT-A) and a Paramedic 
(EMT-P) plus 4 First Responders who assist on call as required. Two new 
ambulances will be delivered in July 1999 and their will be 2 units in 
Nipawin and 2 units in Carrot River to service the needs of the District. A 
Jeep Rover has been equipped to meet provincial standards to be used by 
the Paramedic and staff to respond quickly to the scene of a medical 
emergency. All vehicles and staff are licensed and inspected annually by 
Saskatchewan's Department of Health. 

Back-up ambulance service is supplied through a mutual aid agreement 
with services located in Tisdale, Prince Albert, and Flin Flon. EMS 
support within the NEHD is supplied by 15 First Responder Teams 
strategically located throughout the District. The First Responders are 
used only in emergency situations and are under medical control through 
North-East EMS. Two First Responders have recently advanced their skill 
level to the EMT certificate. 

There has been some interest shown by commercial facilities in the NEHD 
to have their own staff trained to the First Responder level. This would be 
a tremendous asset to the commercial facilities and ensure an advance 
level of care for their own staff should a medical emergency arise at their 
site. 

North-East EMS has instructors on staff for First Aid, CPR, First 
Responders, Defibrillation, and is in the process of having instructors 
trained to provide ATV courses. Two staff members are trained to the 
level of advanced Critical Incident Stress Management. Safety lectures are 
provided for all driver training students in the NEHD and snowrnobile 
clubs and schools as requested. 

Dispatching for all emergency and non emergency calls in the NEHD is 
contracted to Central Answering Service in Prince Albert. Two 
professionally trained dispatchers are on call 24 hours per day and can 
offer medical assistance on the phone while the ambulance is dispatched to 
the call. This type of dispatching system is now being implemented 
throughout most of Saskatchewan and is proving to be highly successful in 
true medical emergencies. The dispatchers have radio contact with all 
ambulance and first responder personnel in the North-East Health District. 

When should I call an 
Ambulance? 

Is the patient's condition life- 
threatening or is the patient 
and individual with the patient 
not able to handle the 
situation? 
Could that patient's condition 
worsen and turn life- 
threatening en route to the 
hospital if they were in a 
private vehicle? 
Could moving the patient 
cause further injury or 
aggravate the illness? 

When calling the Ambulance ... 
stay calm and speak clearly 
give your name, address, 
phone number and exact 
location of the patient and 
nature of the problem 
answer all questions 
do not hang up until you are 
told to do so by the emergency 
dispatcher 
to save time in an emergency, 
post the emergency phone 
number 310-5000 next to your 
phone 
also post your address and 
written directions on how to 
reach your residence, 
especially if you live in a rural 
area 

What to do while waiting ... 
if possible, send someone to 
meet the ambulance and direct 
them to you 
turn on a porch light or place a 
marker in front of the house so 
you can be easily found 
keep the patient warm and 
comfortable 
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310-5000 is the number to call for all medical emergencies and calls for 
fire and police can also be handled by the dispatch center if a caller uses 
3 10-5000 for their emergency. 

All ambulances are currently equipped with Global Positioning Systems 
(GPS) which allow the staff to use satellite tracking to locate rural 
residences while en route to the call. Computers on the ambulances have 
maps of all Rural Municipalities in the NEHD and land locations of the 
call are tracked in the ambulance and directs the ambulance to the rural 
residence eliminating time wasted reading R.M. maps. Rural callers need 
to know their land locations when accessing EMS services and should 
have the proper land location written down close to the phone should an 
emergency arise. 

Provincial Highway road conditions in the North-East Health District 
continue to deteriorate and two of the ambulances used for long distance 
transfers have had special stretcher rides installed to try to reduce the 
rough ride on transfers to and from the larger centers. Installation of these 
specialty rides has greatly increased patient comfort on long distance 
transfers. 

The North-East Mental Health & Addiction Services provide a range of 
community-based services. Assessment, referral, and counseling are 
provided by a team consisting of a psychiatrist, a psychologist, a social 
worker, and a psychiatric nurse. 

Individuals diagnosed with mental illness (e.g. Schizophrenia, Bi Polar 
Depressive Disorder) receive community follow-up including home visits, 
case management, medication management and supportive counseling. 

Families, youth, and adults are offered counseling for a variety of 
problems including stress, parent-child relationships, and distressing life 
circumstances. Specialized therapy is offered to anyone suffering from 
compulsive gambling or chemical dependency. 

Accomplishments: 
School counsellor shared management position created 
Client satisfaction survey 
Participation in tri-district Eating Disorder project 
Getting up from Depression Workshop at Carrot River - 50 attended 
Children's Development Group 
Mental Health Support group and Vocational programs at OASIS 

I NORTH-EAST EMS 

I Calls 1 1,221 1 1,297 

Did you know? 
The frequency of 
schizophrenia in the general 
population is 1 %. 

The frequency increases to 
50% if both parents have 
schizophrenia. 

If one parent has 
schizophrenia the risk is 8 - 
12%. 

If an aunt, uncle or 
grandparent has 
schizophrenia the risk is 3%. 
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Two new Mental Health Approved Homes for long term mentally ill 
Critical Incident Response training and team creation 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
Improved programs and facilities for mental health support group at 
OASIS 
Continue to provide a d  enhance children groups 
Encourage depression support group 
Involvement in inter-agency groups 

Community Development 

The North-East Health District and Nipawin and Tisdale School 
Divisions - Youth Counsellor Initiative 

Vision - Health and Education Linked Services for Children and Youth at 
Risk within the North-East Health District and Nipawin School Division. 

The North-East Health District, in its 1996197 Health Plan, identified the 
need for action in the area of counseling services for children and youth 
based on meetings with the Nipawin School Division, information from 
teachers and reports from local counseling services. 

Needs that were specifically identified were : 
The provision of counseling services to respond to the growing 
number of children and youth coming to school with complex health, 
social, emotional and developmental problems. 
Advocacy for the student and the need to institute counseling services 
away from the school environment. 

Target Population and Services 

Located in the Nipawin School Division Office, the Youth Counsellor will 
provide the following services for students in Codette, Nipawin, White 
Fox, Choiceland, Smeaton, Carrot River, Arborfield and Zenon Park: 

Individual Counseling: Identifies children and youth at risk and 
provides appropriate counseling, refers to treatment personnel as 
necessary, institutes case management processes and coordination 
with other agencies as required. 
Information: In conjunction with NEHD Community Health 
Educator, provides and /or arranges for classroom presentations on 
drugs and alcohol, violence, self-esteem, anger management, etc. 
Links with the Community: Establishes links with community 
groups and agencies to provide alternate recreation andlor social 
activities. 

From Mental Health Client 
Survey: 

16 of 49 questionnaires 
returned. 
6 clients dissatisfied with 
length of time to get first 
appointment. 
12 clients felt the counseling 
services received were 
excellent, 4 responded 'good'. 

"Very good suggestions on how to 
handle and cope with situations." 

"After a session I realized I don't 
have to tackle all problems at once 
- to take one at a time." 

"I have a much better outlook on 
life when I leave." 

"I was having a very hard time 
dealing with some very serious 
issues and it really helped to have 
an unbiased listener." 

- Mental Health & 
Addiction Service Clients 

The Partnership 

As of September, 1998, The North- 
East Health District and 
NipawinITisdale School Divisions 
entered into an agreement to 
support the position of a full time 
Youth Counsellor who will work 
with children and youth in the 
schools and act as a liaison for the 
students and their families with 
school personnel or other 
community and provincial 
agencies, i.e. mental health 
services, interagency case 
management groups, social 
services, justice. 

North-East Health District 1998199 Annual Report Page 45 



The Goals 

To support children, youth and their families experiencing social, 
emotional, and developmental problems and provide subsequent 
counselingl intervention 
To ensure referrals to appropriate treatment personnel 
To serve as a communication link between students and school 
personnellother agencies 
To ensure the provision of information and to facilitate the 
development of safe, healthy lifestyles in children and youth 
To ensure program development and evaluation of the Youth 
Counsellor Initiative 

Expected Outcomes for 1998199 are: 
Identification of children and youth at risk 
Increased access for children, youth and their families to appropriate 
resources 
Provision of education and information 
Increased interagency networking and coordination 
Improved emotionallsocial well-being as stated by children, youth and 
families 
Increased access of children and youth to alternative recreation/social 
activities 
Decrease in children and youth incidents of socially maladaptive 
behaviors 
Improved communication between children, youth and their families 
with school personnel 

Key Priorities for the Future: 
A comprehensive evaluation that will provide information to all 
stakeholders on the effectiveness of the Youth Counsellor Initiative. 
Data will be collected from a number of sources such as: 
- satisfaction surveys from students/families/parents/school 

personnel1 other agencies 
- reports from educational psychologist, resource room teachers, 

special needs consultants 
- student evaluations from school personnel 
- federal and provincial health reports and surveys 

Didyou know? 
*. 

In 1995196, of all the 
hospitalizations for children under 
20 that were due to injury in the 
NEHD: 

13% were due to self injury 
5% were due to adverse effects 
of drugs 

- SK Institute on 
Prevention of Handicaps 

Didyou know? 

In the NEHD, during the period 
1995 to 1996, there were 5 deaths 
of children under 10 years of age. 

-SK Institute on 
Prevention of Handicaps 

"As places of education, schools 
are responsible for promoting 
positive values about the global 
community, about children, about 
unique gifts and needs, about the 
future. Our schools should inspire 
a view of the future based on the 
finest values of humankind. 
Children who are welcomed, 
supported and prized from the 
beginning have a better chance of 
being welcomed, supported and 
prized throughout their lives." 

Saskatchewan Association for Community 
Living. 1998. A Parents' Guide to inclusive 
Education. Saskatoon Author. 

North-East Health D ~ j t r ~ c t  1998199 Annual Report Page 46 

- 



LIVING WITHOUT VIOLENCE COMMUNITY GROUP: 

Over the past year or so, a number of members of the community have 
initiated the development of a community action group addressing issues 
of violence in the community. The group includes representatives from: 
the North-East Health District, Northeast Crisis Intervention Center, 
Victim Services, Provincial STOPS (Saskatchewan Towards Offering 
Partnership Solutions to Violence) Program, Metis Eastern Region 11, L.P. 
Miller School students and guidance counsellor, Living Without Violence 
group facilitators, Nipawin ministerial, RCMP, Nipawin Parenting 
Network, and a number of individuals from the community. 

At one point teens who were involve in the group made the suggestion that 
we present a drama to the student body regarding issues of family 
violence. With that in mind, we applied to the Rural Health Initiatives 
Fund for funding. The finding was granted and in mid-April 1998, the 
drama production entitled "Mirror Games" was presented to 1200+ 
students throughout the entire district. All grades from grade 7 to 12, from 
Choiceland, Smeaton, Carrot River, etc. were bussed to attend. Each 
production (7 in all) was followed by a period of presentation and 
discussion re issues which were observed. Resource information was 
available for attendees and included agencies and numbers to contact. 

Agencies such as social services, mental health, public health, RCMP, etc. 
were provided with invitations for clients plus there were times available 
for the public at large. This was a joint effort between the North-East 
Health District's Rural Health Initiatives, Nipawin School Division's 
gender equity committee, the L.P. Miller drama club and students. The 
Town of Nipawin was approached and declared that particular week 
'Violence Awareness Week'. The event was very successful in that it 
allowed students to present information to their peers as well as involving 
various members of the community. Another drama is already being 
planned for next year. The search is underway for an appropriate play. 

LIVING WITHOUT VIOLENCE PROGRAMS: 

Children are our most precious future resource, and since children are 
particularly susceptible to physical, mental and spiritual influences and 
since research continues to suggest that a person's deepest feelings of self- 
esteem and ability to cope with stress are developed early in childhood, 
positive and negative influences at a very young age can have far-reaching, 
long-term consequences. The quality of early childhood development 
affects intelligence, lifelong learning skills, social development and coping 
skills. It also influences children's health and well-being in later life. In 
response to this, in 1997-98, the North-East Health District approved 
funding for programs aimed at delivering services to victims of abuse and 

"Even if an intervention program is 
successful in reducing one or more 
social ill, a key policy question is 
whether or not its cost to society 
exceeds its benefit. In some 
instances, policy makers might 
need to choose between two 
alternative programs ...one could 
either fimd a program expected to 
save four youths from becoming 
career criminals or incarcerate 40 
more youths. Which alternative 
should be chosen?" 

Cohen, Mark A. (1998). The Monetary 
Value of Saving a High-Risk Youth. 
Journal of Quantitative Criminology. 
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also a treatment program for perpetrators of abuse. The family violence 
program is entitled 'Living Without Violence'. These programs address 
three broad areas which determine the health of people, namely, Social 
Environment, Physical Environment and an individual's capacity and 
resources. 

Studies conducted by the Provincial Government in 1994 showed that 1 in 
4 women in Saskatchewan experiences violence at the hands of the man 
she lives with and on the average a battered woman is beaten 35 times 
prior to her calling the police and that indeed only 25% of all wife assaults 
are reported to police. Rural women face additional difficulties that arise 
from geographic location, lack of services and lack of anonymity. 
Research has shown that violence is a learned behaviour, and that boys 
who witness violence against their mothers are three times more likely to 
be violent toward their future spouses and further that children who 
witness the abuse of their mothers are emotionally affected to the same 
degree as children who are physically abused themselves. The conclusion 
may therefore be drawn that programs which assist perpetrators in 
recognizing the changing abusive behaviour, programs which assist the 
victims, both the women as well as the children, will effectively influence 
the health of future generations of children in our communities. At the 
same time as we are teaching the perpetrators of the moment, we must be 
teaching the adults of the future, in order to stop the cycle of violence. 

During 1997-98, four support groups were held for women who are 
survivors of physical, sexual, emotional and verbal abuse. Each support 
group is a minimum of six weeks in length. Attendance is open to the 
public and a referral is not required. Information regarding availability 
and registration is available from North-East Mental Health Services as 
well as through a variety of other agencies. 

The Living Without Violence treatment program for perpetrators is a 20-
week closed program. Referrals are received from various agencies 
including the Department of Justice, Social Services and Mental Health as 
well as from self referrals. Acceptance into the program is conditional 
upon the completion of an assessment of each individual. Since the 
program's beginning, a number of individuals have completed the 
program. Ongoing evaluation and follow up with participants continues 
at six, twelve and eighteen months. The group is CO-facilitated by a male- 
female team and is delivered through the partnership of the North-East 
Health District and the Department of Social Services. This treatment 
program is one of approximately 200 programs which operate throughout 
Canada at the present time and one of a small number of programs 
delivered in Saskatchewan. Although the group targets men who are or 
have been abusive to their current or previous partner, the goal of the 
program is to promote the safety of the women and children. 

+. 

Did you know? 

That domestic violence occurs 
in all ethnic, racial, economic, 
social and age groups. 

That 2 1 % of women abused by 
a current or previous partner 
were assaulted during 
pregnancy. 

THERE'S NO EXCUSE FOR t 

ABUSE. No one ever deserves 
abuse. ABUSE IS NEVER 
justified. 

That domestic violence is a 
population health issue. 

"Society is quick to judge young 
people who make mistakes, but 
provides few opportunities for 
young people to learn about rights 
and responsibilities through 
participation in the institutions that 
have authority over them. The best 
way to learn responsibility and 
citizenship is to participate in 
decision-making." 

Saskatchewan Council on Children. (1998 
October) Second Report of Saskatchewan 
Council on Children: Recommendations to 
the Ministers participating in 
Saskatchewan's Plan for Children. 
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Awa~isaL Head Start Pro gram 

The Cumberland House community in northern Saskatchewan has 
organized a half-day program to give aboriginal pre-schoolers a "head 
start" on their education. 

Now, 25 three and four year olds in the Awasisak Head Start Program 
learn new skills such as letter and number recognition, basic Cree phrases, 
how to play cooperatively, and healthy practices such as regular hand 
washing. Parents and elders are actively involved, and a nutritious meal is 
provided. 

Health Canada has made the funding available because there is a growing 
r awareness of a strong tie between education and long term individual and 

community health. Consider: 
On average, people with less education have shorter life expectancies 
and are sick more often. The less schooling, the higher the odds of 
developing heart attack, stomach ulcers, diabetes, kidney disease, 
bronchitis, and tuberculosis, according to recent American data. 
Statistics Canada reports that people with more than 12 years of 
education are less likely to have high blood pressure, high blood 
cholesterol, or to be overweight. 
Canada's 1993-94 population health survey found twice as many 
university graduates as people with grade school education rate their 
health as 'excellent' (36% compared to 18%). 

It is not just that education improves people's 'healthy literacy' - the 
ability to access services and information (such as how to avoid heart 
disease or sexually transmitted diseases) to keep themselves and their 
families healthy. 

Nor is it just the fact that education improves their changes for 
employment, higher status jobs, and stable incomes. 

It is that education enhances the ability to manage life and cope with 
change, thereby boosting self-esteem. Studies in various countries show 
that the immune system can be impaired if a person feels a lack of control 
over major stressors. 

Creating healthy communities starts with preschoolers. Head Start 
Programs are a way to improve not just the self-esteem of children, but the 
mental and physical health of a community. Often a Head Start Program 
is a catalyst for workshops on parenting skills, preparing nutritious meals 
on a budget, or dealing with family violence. 

"We're hoping it's going to make a 
big difference when they enter 
school," says director Marie 
Seaton. "Right now, children enter 
kindergarten and they don't know 
what school is all about. They 
have to sit still for so long and it's 
all new to them." 

A study of 123 'at risk' 
preschoolers in a Michigan head 
start program found that two 
decades later, there are 50% fewer 
arrests, 33% more high school 
completions, and higher earning in 
the preschool group compared to a 
control group. 

More and more of today's jobs call 
for high literacy, numeracy, and 
computing skills, but; according to 
1995 Statistics Canada data, about 
60% of unemployed Canadians 
have low literacy skills. This not 
only threatens their job prospects, 
but increases the likelihood they 
will miss preventive health 
message. 
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S t a n d a h d  mortality rates, North-East Health District, Top 25 c a m s ,  1989-
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HOSPITAL SEPARATIONS - TOP TWENTY CONDITIONS 1993194 
North-East Health District 
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Figure 3.24A - Distribution of Hospitalizations by Injury Cause for 
Children Under 20 Years of Age, North East Health District, 1995-1 996 
(n=l49) 
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SBICB 0 
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Figure 3.24B - Injury-Related Hospitalization Rates (per 100,000 person- 
years) for Children Under 20 Years of Age, North East Health District 
and the Province of Saskatchewan, 1995-1 996 
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ON A TYP/CA L DAY /N SASKATCHWA N /N f 997 

The followmg events were recorded: 

35 LIVE BIRTHS OCCURRED: 
18 males and 17 females were born 
4 were born to teenage mothers 
1 multiple birth per day 
2 were low birth weight babies (<2500 grams) 
12 were born to single mothers 
1 stillbirth every week 
The most popular name for boys was Austin and for girls 
way Taylor. 

I 15 MARRIAGES WERE SOLEMNIZED: 
6 marriages end in divorce or annulment each day 

23 DEATHS OCCURRED: 
12 males and l l females died 
S deaths were due to diseases of the circulatory system 
including: 
- 6 deaths were from heart disease 
- 2 deaths were from cerebrovascular diseases 
2 deaths were due to diseases of the respiratory system 
7 deaths were from AIDSIHIV infections for the entire 
year 

6 deaths were due to cancer including: 
- 1 lung cancer 
- 1 cancer of digestive organs 
- 1 cancer of genitourinary organs 
- 1 breast cancer every 2nd day 
- 1 prostate cancer every 2nd day 
1 motor vehicle traffic accident every ?:'"ay 
1 suicide every 3 days 
1 homicide every 2 weeks 
1 perinatal death every 3 days 
1 infant death every 4 days 
1 neonatal death every 5 days 

169 CERTIFICATES WERE ISSUED EVERY DAY: 
135 birth certificates 
17 death certificates 
17 marriage certificates 

2 APPLICATIONS FOR LEGAL NAME CHANGES 
WERE REGISTERED. 

1 ADOPTION WAS REGISTERED. 

Cumberland House Dental Therapist Emmanuel Turner 
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Management d Their Rexponxibilify for the 
f;nanc;al Sfafemenfx 

The accompanying financial statements and related financial information 
throughout the North-East Health District 1998199 Annual Report to the 
Community have been prepared by Management using generally accepted 
accounting principles consistently applied with any exceptions described 
in the financial statements. 

Management is responsible for the integrity of the financial data and 
ensures that relevant and reliable information is reported and assets are 
safeguarded by maintaining an adequate and appropriate system of internal 
controls. 

The Board of Directors ensures that financial reporting and internal control 
responsibilities are met through the appointment of the Finance Committee 
from members of the Board to discuss audit and financial matters with 
representatives of management and the external auditors. 

Information and recommendations of the Committee are provided to the 
Board for consideration. 

The North-East District Health Board is responsible for engaging and 
appointing an external auditor. 

Deloitte & Touche of Prince Albert, SK have examined the North-East 
Health District's financial position at March 3 1, 1999, and the results of its 
operations and changes in its financial position for the year ended. 

The Auditor's responsibility is to provide an independent opinion on the 
fairness of the financial statements prepared by Management. 

Nipawin, SK 
June 28,1999 

LCC( %L. 
Rayann Ulvick, CEO 

1 11 ~ . ~ , r l /  (CL L/ 
lan, Director of Finance 

~ i m  Sanderson, Director of Finance 

Saskatchewan Health will be 
providing financial support for 
capital purhases required as a 
result of Y2K issues. 

SK Health has done an 
inventory of equipment and 
building systems in the District that 
could potentially have Y2K 
deficiencies. Wardrop was 
contracted by SK Health to do a 
subsequent audit and assessment of 
building systems. 

Information Technologist 
David Gale has tested information 
systems, software and computers. 

Materials Management is 
doing an inventory of critical items 
for each department so mitigation 
andior contingency plans can be 
established in the event of supply 
shortages. 

Although there are no Y2K 
problems presently identified or 
unresolved, the Y2K Committee 
has discussed the need to have 
contingency plans should any of 
the systems or equipment fail. The 
Committee will be looking at the 
inventory lists and establishing 
contingency plans 

Didyou know? 

The NEHD issuediused 4,589 
cheques last year 
We have 2,300 vendors set up 
on our system 
l998IW salaries and benefits 
were 13.4 million 
The District received $376,997 
in donations from the Nipawin 
Region Health Foundation in 
1 998199 
The District contributed 
$452,234 to the pension plan 
on behalf of employees. This 
is in addition to the employee's 
own contribution. 
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Deloitte & Touche LLP 

5 - 15 Street East Telephone: (306) 763-741 1 
Prince Albert. Sasktchewan Telecopier: (306) 763-01 91 
S6V 1E9 deloitte.touche@sk.syrnpatico.ca 

AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO THE DIRECTORS OF 
NORTH-EAST DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD 

We have audited the statement of financial position of the North-East District Health Board as at 
March 31, 1999 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balances and of cash flows 
for the vear then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Health Board's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are fiee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Board as at March 31, 1999 and the results of its operations and of cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Chartered Accountants 

May 29.1999 

A vendor list is available at the District office which identifies payments in excess of S2,500 to 
individuals and companies. 



Statement l l 

NORTH-EAST DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD 
l 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

as at March 31,1999 

Restricted 
Operating 

Fund 
Capital 

Fund 
Total 
1999 

Total 
1998 i 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

(Note 10) 

Cash and short-term investments 
(Schedule 2) 

Accounts receivable 
Saskatchewan Health 
Other 

Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 

Investments (Schedule 2) 
(Market $50,000; 1998 - $50,000) 

Capital assets (Note 2 and 3) 
Other Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries 
Vacation payable 
Mortgages payable - current 

(Note 5) 
Deferred Revenue (Note 6 )  

Mortgages Payable (Note 5) 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Invested in capital assets 
Internally restricted (Schedule 3) 
Unrestricted 
Fund balances - Statement 2 

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

-. -44 Director 



Statement 2 

NORTH-EAST DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

year ended March 31,1999 

Operating Fund Restricted Funds 
Budget Total Total 

1999 1999 1998 1999 1998 
(Note 13) (Note 10) (Note 10) 

REVENUES 
Saskatchewan Health 
- General Revenue Fund 
Funds Received under 
- Hospital Revenue Act 
Long-term resident and respite income 
Home Based Service - client fees 
CMHC mortgage subsidies (Note 7) 
Out of province charges & 

third party reimbursements 
Donations 
Investment Income 
Ancillary operations - income 

TOTAL Revenues 

EXPENSES 
Acute services 
Supportive care services 
Home based services 
Heatth Improvement Initiatives 
Community heatth, wellness, 

and social centres 
Community Care lnaatives 
Emergency response services 
Community Health s e ~ c e s  
CumberlandMorthern Health 
Mental Health services 
Rehabilitation services 

TOTAL expenses (Schedule 1) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 

Fund balances, beginning of year 
I Interfund transfers (Note 17) 

Fund balances, end of year 

(See accompanying notes to the financial statements) 



l 
I 

Statement 3 
l 

NORTHEAST DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

year ended March 31,1999 

Operating Fund Restricted Fund 
1999 1998 1999 1998 

(Note 10) (Note 10) 
i 

Cash provided by (used in): Operating Activities Financing& Investing 
Activities 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue 
over expenditure 

Net change in non-cash working 
capital (Note 8) 

Non-cash items - depreciation 
- loss on sale 

Purchase of capital assets 
Purchase of other assets 
Proceeds on sale of capital assets 

Repayment of debt 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
investments during the year 

Cash and investments, beginning 
of year 

Interfund transfers (Note 17) 
Cash and investments, 

end of year 

Amounts in cash balances 
Cash and short term 

investments 
Investments 



NORTH-EAST DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

year ended March 31,1999 

1. AUTHORITY 

The North-East District Health Board was created by Order in Council 653193 dated September 8, 1993 
under the provisions of the Health District Act (the Act) effective September 1, 1993. 

The Board is responsible for planning, coordinating and providing health services within the geographic area 
known as the North-East Health District. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
and include the following significant accounting policies: 

a) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements is conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that af5ect reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

b) Amalgamation of Organizations 

The Act and Regulations under the Act assign the Board the responsibility to coordinate and deliver 
certain institutional and community-based health services. To meet this responsibiity, certain institutional 
facilities and community-based services were amalgamated with the Board. In the l998199 fiscal year, 
the following health agency amalgamated with the Board under section 14 of the Act: 

Cumberland House Health Centre 

The organization identified above have been combined with the Board in accordance with the pooling of 
interests method of accounting. 

c) Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the Board are maintained in accordance with the principles of fhd accounting. For 
financial reporting purposes, accounts with similar characteristics have been combined into the following 
major hnding groups: 



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

i) Operating Fund 6 

The operating hnd reflects the primary operations of the Board including revenues received for 
provision of health services from Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue Fund and billings to 
patients, clients, the federal government and other agencies for patient and client services. Other 
revenue consists of interest, recoveries and ancillary revenue. Expenses are for the delivery of health 
services. 

ii) Capital Fund 

The capital hnd reflects the equity of the Board in capital assets after taking into consideration any 
associated long term debt. The capital hnd includes revenues received fiom Saskatchewan Health -
General Revenue Fund designated for the acquisition of capital assets and mortgage obligations, 
revenues received from Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) for mortgage 
obligations, and donations designated for capital purposes. Expenses consist primarily of 
amortization of capital assets and mortgage interest expense. 

d) Foundations 

The Nipawin Region Health Foundation Inc. is incorporated under The Non-profit Corporations Act and 
is a registered charity under The Income Tax Act. 

Under the Foundation' S Articles of Incorporation, a majority of the Board of Directors are appointed by 
the North-East District Health Board, consequently the Health Board effectively controls the activities of 
the Foundation. 

These financial statements do not include the financial activities of the Foundation. Alternatively, Note 
15 describes the financial position and results of operations of the Foundation. 

e) Revenue 

Donations and contributions from Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue Fund for capital purposes and 
for general operations are included in revenue in the year in which they are received or receivable. 

f) Inventory 

Inventory consists of general stores, dietary, laboratory, linen, pharmacy and other. All inventories are 
valued at cost as determined on an average cost basis. 



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

g) Capital Assets , 

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Normal maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Capital 
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated usefbl lives as follows: 

Buildings 2 112% to 5% 
Land and leasehold improvements 10% 
Equipment 6 114% to 20% 

Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of contribution (if fair value can be 
reasonably determined). 

h) Investments 

Investments are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. 

3. CAPITAL ASSETS 
Accumulated 1999 1998 

Cost Amortization Net Book Value 

Land & Improvements $ 374,738 $ 118,270 $ 256,468 $ 266,399 
Buildings 21,478,533 10,127,366 11,351,167 1 1,809,782 
Equipment & Furnishings 5.054.012 3.3 84.722 1.669.290 1.125.086 

4. COMMITMENTS 

a) Capital Asset Acquisition 

At March 3 1, 1999, commitments for the acquisition of capital assets were $ 0  (1998 - $650,000). 

b) Operating Leases 

Minimum annual rentals under operating leases on property and equipment over the next five years are as 
follows: 

2000 22,380 
200 1 5,575 
2002 -
2003 -
2004 -



5. MORTGAGES PAYABLE 
Interest Repayment 

Title of Issue Terms 

Pasquia Special Care Home 
CMHC, due August 2025 8.00% $25,764 principal and interest 

Arborfield Special Care Lodge 
CMHC, due December 1, 1999 8.825% $155,508 principal and 

interest of which $99,924 is 
subsidized by Saskatchewan 
Housing 

Pineview Lodge 
CMHC, due August 2019 6.875% $2 1,O 14 principal and interest 

CMHC, due July 1,2000 8.64% $86,064 principal and interest 
of which $47,827 is subsidized 
by Saskatchewan Housing 

8.64% $206,874 principal and 
CMHC, due July 1,2000 interest of which $156,000 is 

subsidized by Saskatchewan 
Housing 

Less current portion 

For each of the mortgages, the Board has pledged the related buildings of the special care homes as security. 

Principal repayments required in each of the next five years are estimated as follows: 

1 



I 

6. DEFERRED REVENUE 

Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue Fund 
Rural health initiative services 
Telehealth Funding 
Workplace Wellness Initiative Funding 

Nipawin Region Health Foundation Inc. 

8. NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL 

($crease) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
(Increase) in prepaid expenses 
Decrease (increase) in accounts payable 
Increase accrued salaries and vacation pay payable 
(Decrease) Increase in deferred revenue 

9. PATIENT AND RESIDENT TRUST ACCOUNTS 

1999 1998 

The Board administers finds held in trust for patients and residents using the Board's facilities. The hnds 
are held in separate accounts for the patients or residents at each facility. The total cash held in trust as at 
March 31, 1999 was $18,242 (1 998 - $26,194). These amounts are not reflected in the financial statements. 

Restricted fbnding related to general operations from Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue Fund is 
recorded as the related costs are incurred. Other revenue received in advance is recorded as revenue as the 
related services are provided. 

I 
7. CMHC SUBSIDIES 

CMHC subsidies include payments of $43,690 to Municipal Government Housing Division due to over- 
estimating the subsidy required to be paid to Pineview Lodge for the 1997 and 1998 fiscal years. 



10. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
*. 

As described in Note 2a), the Board amalgamated with one additional health corporation during the year. In 
accordance with the pooling of interest method of accounting, the assets, liabilities and results of operations 
of these health corporations are included in these financial statements for the 1998 year. As a result, the 
1998 comparative figures have been restated as follows: 

1998 as Previously Recorded Restatement 1998 as Restated 

Assets 16,700,880 22,404 16,723,284 

Liabilities 6,385,903 6,385,903 

Fund Balances 
Beginning of year 

Invested in Capital Assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Fund Balances 
End of year 

Invested in Capital Assets 8,097,520 22,404 8,119,924 

Restricted 92 1,668 92 1,668 

Unrestricted 1,295,789 1,295,789 
No information on Cumberland House revenues and expenses h m  March 3 1,1998 receivedh m  SK Health. 

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Included in these financial statements are transactions with related parties. These related parties include 
various Saskatchewan Crown corporations, departments, board and commissions related to the Board by 
virtue of its economic interest with the Government of Saskatchewan. 

Transactions with these related parties are in the normal course of operations. Amounts due to or fiom and 
the recorded amounts of the transactions resulting fiom these transactions are included in the financial 
statements and the table below. They are recorded at the standard rates charged by those organizations and 
are settled on normal trade terms. Other transactions with related parties are disclosed separately. 

Saskatchewan Power Corporation $253,468 
Sask Energy Incorporated 149,43 6 
Saskatchewan Workers' Compensation Board 230,064 



12. PENSION PLAN 

Employees of the Board participate in one of the following pension plans. Some employees participate in the 
retirement plan of the Saskatchewan Association of Health Organizations (a related party) which is a multi- 
employer defined benefit plan. Other employees participate in either the Public Service Superannuation Plan (a 
related party) which is also a defined benefit plan, or the Public Employees (Government Contributory) 
Superannuation Plan (a related party) which is a defined contribution plan. The Board's financial obligation to 
the plans is limited to making required payments to match amounts contributed by employees for current services. 
Pension expense for the year amounted to $452,234 (1998 - $419,874). 

13. BUDGET 

1 The operating budget, which is included in the Board's Health Plan, was approved by the Board and submitted 
l to the Minister of Health in accordance with The Health Districts Act. 

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

a) Significant terms and conditions 

There are no significant. terms and conditions related to financial instruments classified as current assets or 
current liabilities that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of W r e  case flows. Sigdicant terms and 
conditions for the other financial instruments are disclosed separately in these financial statements. 

b) Credit risk 

The Board is exposed to credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts receivable. The majority of 
the Board's receivables are from Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue Fund, Saskatchewan Workers' 
Compensation Board, health insurance companies or other Provinces. Therefore, the credit risk is minimal. 

c) Fair value 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instrument: 
e The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate fair value due to their immediate or 

short-term nature. 

- cash and short term investments 
- accounts receivable 
- accounts payable 
- accrued salaries and vacation payable 

For investments, the fair value is considered to approximate quoted market values. 

The fair value of mortgages payable before the repaymerit within one year approximates their book value. 



15. FOUNDATION 

Fund-raising efforts are undertaken through a non-profit business corporation known as the Nipawin Region 
Health Foundation Inc. 

Nipawin Region Health Foundation Inc. 

November November 
30.1998 30.1997 

Balance Sheet 
Total Assets 

Total Liabilities 
Total Equity 

Results of Operation 
Total Revenues 
Total Expenses 

Excess of Revenue over Expenses $ 63.907 $ 103.610 

Total Expenses include contributions of $127,155 (1998 - $120,000) to the Board 

Cash Flows 
Cash from Operations $ (32,097) $ 39,612 
Cash provided by Financing and Investing Activities (1.126.559) 233.050 

Increase (decrease) in cash $B$ 272.662 

16. COMMUNITY GENERATED TRUST FUNDS 

Under the terms of the pre-amalgamation agreements, the District Health Board has agreed to hold community 
generated assets in trust. The Board established a separate f h d  for the assets of each trust. Health corporations 
formerly held these assets before amalgamating with the Board. The assets are interest bearing with the interest 
credited to the trust balance. The assets are not the property of the District Health Board and are therefore not 
included as part of the assets of the Board. 



16. COMMUNITY GENERATED TRUST FUNDS (continued) 

Following is the status of the trust fimds at March 3 1: 

1999 1998 
Carrot Smeaton 

Nipawin Pineview River Home Health 
Hosuital Lodge Hospital Care Centre Total Total 

Balance, beginning of year $ 118,091 S 198,541 $ 547,745 $ 68,069 S 385,882 $1,318,328 $1,349,234 
Interest earned 2,365 7,426 31,018 3,493 18,584 62,886 57,528 
Expendituredwithdrawals (120.456) (205.967) -(31.018) (357.441) (88.4341 

Each trust hnd has a Trust Advisory Committee, which is appointed by the various towns, villages and rural 
municipalities, served by the pre-amalgamation agency. The trust fhds are for the benefit of the rate payers of 
the various municipalities and shall be used for health related purposes. The committees have the power to 
establish rules and procedures and the majority decision of the committees are binding upon the District Health 
Board with respect to any use of the trust fbnd. 

17. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

In 1999, the Board internally restricted and transferred from the Operating Fund to the Capital Fund the 
following amounts: 

CMHC replacement reserve - interest and allocations $ 52,115 
Municipal levy 129,3 83 
Capital Reserve - interest allocation 17.871 

These internally restricted amounts are not available for unrestricted purposes without approval of the Board. 

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

The Board is currently named as a defendant in a claim related to the death of a patient. At the date of these 
financial statements, the matter has proceeded to the examination for discovery stage and it is anticipated that, 
should the matter proceed, no liability will rest upon the Health District. 

19. UNCERTAINTY DUE TO THE YEAR 2000 ISSUE 

The Year 2000 Issue arises because many computerized systems use two digits rather than four to identifjr a year. 
Date-sensitive systems may recognize the year 2000 as 1900 or some other date, resulting in errors when 
information using year 2000 dates is processed. In addition, similar problems may arise in some systems that use 
certain dates in 1999 to represent something other than a date. The effects of the Year 2000 Issue may be 
experienced before, on, or after January 1,2000, and, if not addressed, the impact on operations and financial 
reporting may range from minor errors to significant systems failure that could affect an entity's ability to conduct 
normal business operations. It is not possible to be certain that all aspects of the Year 2000 Issue affecting the 
entity, including those related to the efforts of customers, suppliers, or other third parties, will be hlly resolved. 



20. LOAN GUARANTEE -NORTH SASK LAUNDRY 

North-East Health District Board is one of eleven shareholders of North Sask Laundry &' Support Services 
Ltd.. In May 1999, the North-East Health District Board of Directors passed a resolution to guarantee a 
proportional share (111 1) of a $707,000 operating loan for the laundry service, representing a potential 
liability of $64,272. To date, North Sask Laundry has not taken out the operating loan. 

21. RETROACTIVE PAY INCREASE -SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION 

Many of the Board's employees are under a collective agreement between Saskatchewan Association of 
Health Organizations (SAHO) and the Service Employees International Union (SEIU). Under a collective 
agreement signed in 1999, employees represented by SEW will be paid retro-pay for the period January 1, 
1998 through to March 3 1, 1999. Provincial officials have estimated the amount of the retro-pay for North- 
East Health District to be approximately $1 73,838. In order to best match expenses with the period in which 
they are incurred, the 1998-99 financial statements include both provincial revenues of $173,838 and salary 
expenses of $199,337 for this retro pay. 



Schedule 

NORTH-EAST DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 

year ended March 31,1999 

Medical remuneration and benefits 
Salaries and other benefits 
Medical and surgical drugs and supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Food and dietary supplies 
Interest expense 
Amortization 
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets 
Ambulance services grants 
Other 



Schedule 2 

NORTH-EAST DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD 

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS 

as at March 31,1999 

Effective 
Amount Maturity Rate 

Restricted Investments 

Cash and Short Term 
Chequing & Savings: 

Nipawin Credit Union 

Unrestricted Investments 

Term Deposits 
Nipawin Credit Union 

Cash and Short Term 
Chequing & Savings: 

Nipawin Credit Union 

Long Term 
Canada Savings Bonds 

Total Unrestricted Investments 1.774.737 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 2.372.203 

Restricted Investments consist of replacement reserves maintained under mortgage agreements with Canada 
Mortgage & Housing Corporation (CMHC) andlor Municipal Government Housing Division (MGHD) and an 
internally restricted Capital Equipment Reserve held in the Capital Fund (Schedule 3). 



Schedule 3 

NORTH-EAST DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD 

SCHEDULE OF INTERNALLY RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES 

year ended March 31,1999 

-CMHC Replacement Reserves-- 
Pasquia Arborfield 

Capital Special Special 
Equipment Pineview Care Care 1999 1998 

Reserve Lodae Home Lodqe Total Total 

Balance, beginning of year $ 490,161 $ 188,429 $ 22,086 $ 220,993 $ 921,668 $ 994,028 

Transfers from Operating Fund: 
Interest earned 17,871 10,037 1,452 11,516 40,876 35,882 
Annual allocation - 13,395 5,800 9,915 29.1 10 29,110 
Municipal levy 129,383 - - - 129,383 129,383 

CMHC repayment 8) - - - (8,618) (26,953) 

Transfers to investment in 
Capital asset fund balance (470.452) (22.537) (2.608) (1 9.35-n (514.9541 1239.782) 

The Board is required to maintain certain replacement reserves as a condition of receiving a subsidized mortgage 
or a mortgage interest subsidy from the Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation. 

The Board has established a capital reserve for unspent municipal tax levies and donations. During the year the 
Board repaid a CMHC interest rebate for over-hnding mortgage obligations for 1995 to 1996. 

The above schedule shows the changes in these reserve balances during the year. 



NodA-€mt UeuJfb Didrid 
Box 389, Nipwin, SK SOE 1E0 Board Chair: Bruce Karras 
Phone: (306) 862-5900 CEO: Rayam Ulvick 

ARBORFIELD O DISTRICT HEALTH CA= CENTRE CUMBERLAND HOUSE HEALTH CENTRE 
Box 160 Box 8 
ARBORFIELD,Saskatchewan CUMBERLAND HOUSE, Saskatchewan 
SOE OAO SOE OS0 

Phone: (306) 769-8757 Phone: (306) 8&8-2244 
F a :  (306) 769-8759 F a :  (306) 888-2269 
S- Frisky - Conmunity COOrdin-r Vd Warriner - Nurse 

CARROT RIVER HOSPITAL NXPAWIN HOSPITAL 
Box 10 Box 389 
CARROT RIVER,Saskatchewan NEPAWM, Saskatchewan 
SOE QLO SOS3 1EO 

Phone: (306) 768-2722 Phone: (306) 862-4643 
Fax: (306) 768-2734 F a :  (306) 862-93 10 
L h hB l m  - Co~llplunityCoordinator Marg Currie - Colztmunity Coordiitor 

NORTH-EAST HOME CARE Carrot River Branch (Home Care) 
Box 389 Box 10 
NWAWIN, S*- CARROT RIVER, SK 
SOE 1EO SOE OLO 

Phone: (306) 862-9822 Phone: (306) 768-3 15 1 
F a :  (306) 862-3250 Fa: (306)768-2734 
Rennie Harper - Cammunity Services Coordinator Ruth Q u h g  

PASQUIA SPECIAL CARE HOME PINEVIEW LDDGE 
Box 250 Box 2105 
CARROT RIVER,t b s k t c m  NIPAWIN, Saskg-

SOE OLO SOE 1EO 

Phone: (306) 768-2725 Phone: (306) 862-9828 
Fax: (306) 768-3233 Fax: (306) 862-2400 
Linh Blum - Community Coordinaor M,rrrg Currie - Community Coordinator 

SMEATON HEALTH CENTRE ZENON PARKCOMMUNlTY HEALTH 
Box 158 a SOCIAL CENTRE 
SMEATON.saskatchewarl Box 187 
SQJ U0 ZENON PARK, S=-

SOE 1 WO 
P h s  (306) 426-205 1/2 112 
Fax: (306) 426-2229 Phone: (306) 767-222 1 

Fax: (306) 767-2580 
Margo Marshall - Community Cmrdimtor Sharon Frisky - Community Coordinator 

NORTH-EAST EMS MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
Box 2350 Box 340 Box 340 
NIPAWIN,S m k a t c m  NIBAWIN, Saskatchewm N I P A W ,  Saskatchewan 
WE 1EO SOE 1EO SOE 1EO 

Phone: (306) 862-271 7 Phone: (306)- 862-0761 
Fax: (306) 162-3265 Fax: (396) 862-0763 
Les Couhrd  - Owner/Qperator Director of Community S e r v k  

November 27ERI 


